LANCASTER

CITY COUNCIL

Promoting City, Coast & Countryside

Committee:  CABINET
Date: TUESDAY, 12 MARCH 2013
Venue: LANCASTER TOWN HALL
Time: 10.00 A.M.
AGENDA
1. Apologies
2. Minutes

To receive as a correct record the minutes of Cabinet held on Tuesday, 12 February,
2013 (previously circulated).

3. Items of Urgent Business Authorised by the Leader

To consider any such items authorised by the Leader and to consider where in the
agenda the item(s) are to be considered.

4, Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required
to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been declared in
the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 and in the
interests of clarity and transparency, Members should declare any disclosable pecuniary
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Members are required to
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.

5. Public Speaking
To consider any such requests received in accordance with the approved procedure.
Reports from Overview and Scrutiny
None
Reports

6. Housing Action Plan 2012 - 2017 (Pages 1 - 87)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Leytham)



10.

11.

Report of the Head of Health & Housing

Council Housing Tenancy Policy (Pages 88 - 101)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Leytham)
Report of the Head of Health & Housing

Salt Ayre Sports Centre (Pages 102 - 105)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Sands)
Report of the Head of Community Engagement

Development of the “Light Up Lancaster” Festival (Pages 106 - 110)
(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Sands)
Report of the Head of Community Engagement

Commissioning Arrangements - Voluntary, Community and Faith sector (Pages 111
- 116)

(Cabinet Members with Special Responsibility Councillors Blamire and Barry)
Report of the Head of Community Engagement

Storey Creative Industries Centre: Progress Update (Pages 117 - 120)
(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Hanson)

Report of the Head of Resources

ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Membership
Councillors Eileen Blamire (Chairman), Janice Hanson (Vice-Chairman), Jon Barry,
Abbott Bryning, Tim Hamilton-Cox, Karen Leytham, Ron Sands and David Smith

Queries regarding this Agenda
Please contact Liz Bateson, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582047 or email
ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk.

Apologies
Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk.

MARK CULLINAN,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
TOWN HALL,
DALTON SQUARE,
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ

Published on Thursday, 28 February, 2013.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 6

CABINET

Lancaster District Housing Strategy and Housing
Action Plan 2012 - 2017

Report of Head of Regeneration and Planning

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide members with a summary of the content and purpose of the Lancaster District
Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan 2012 — 2017 along with the final version of the
document for approval by Cabinet.

Key Decision Non-Key Decision Referral from Cabinet
Member

Date of notice of forthcoming 11 February 2013

key decision

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLORS JANICE HANSON AND KAREN
LEYTHAM

(1) That Cabinet recommend the Lancaster District Housing Strategy and
Housing Action Plan 2012 — 2017 to Council for approval.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Lancaster City Council’s last Housing Strategy was produced in 2004; setting
out the district’'s housing priorities over the five year period up until 2009.
Following the Council’s organisational restructuring in 2009, which transferred
the housing strategy function into the Regeneration and Planning Service,
one of the key priorities was to produce a new Housing Strategy and Housing
Action Plan for the district.

1.2 In order to effectively prepare the new Housing Strategy, it was necessary to
commission a new Housing Needs Survey, to provide a wide range of up to
date information and robust evidence base to underpin this work. As a result
of this, David Couttie Associates completed the Housing Needs Survey in
2011. The Survey findings have influenced and priorities and actions
contained within the Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan.

2.0 The Structure and themes of the Housing Strategy and Housing Action
Plan

2.1 The Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan contains a detailed contextual
statement which describes the district’s current housing provision, sets out
how the Housing Strategy relates to the Council’s Corporate Priorities,



2.2

2.3

24

2.5

Page 2

Service Priorities, existing policies and the current regulatory framework
around housing provision, and will act as a pre-cursor to a number of other
themed strategy documents, that feed into the Local Plan. Of particular
importance is the raft of changes being brought about through the Localism
Act, and how we can respond to these over the Housing Strategy and
Housing Action Plan period. The detailed Action Plan then follows, which sets
out the actions and priorities identified, how and when these will be
implemented within the Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan period
with milestones and targets being identified.

The Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan covers a five year period and
contains three main themes: - quantity, quality and people:-

The Quantity section of the Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan sets
out the district’'s housing requirements, which takes account of the Core
Strategy adopted in 2008, and re-affirms that these targets are supported by
the Housing Needs Survey findings, and in the Local Plan. The Housing
Strategy and Housing Action Plan describes how we can achieve future
housing delivery, the appropriate type and tenure mix of future housing,
responding to demographic change and the ageing population, addressing
under-occupation of existing housing, the delivery of affordable housing,
development in rural areas and the existing key village policy. Key actions
will be meeting the targets set for housing completions, reviewing policies in
the light of any changing circumstances, completing and adopting the
Supplementary Planning Document — Meeting Housing Needs, and provide
the necessary support and opportunities to bring forward affordable housing.

The Quality section sets out the Council’s current Regeneration Priorities
within the district, which include Morecambe’s West End, Luneside and
Lancaster Moor North, and also provides a profile of the existing housing
stock within the district. It acknowledges the quality of existing social housing
stock, and previous/current initiatives to improve the private sector housing
stock as well as future housing provision, and how the district can tackle
empty properties, along with options and opportunities that exist. Key actions
in this section include exploring funding opportunities to complete the three
identified regeneration priorities, pursuing other funding opportunities to
improve the existing housing stock, both social and private sector, tackling
empty homes through an Empty Homes Strategy and to increase new
housing supply that meets lifetime homes standards or is purpose built
special needs housing.

The People section outlines how the Housing Strategy and Housing Action
Plan will meet the needs of all parts of the community. The document refers
to a number of vulnerable groups such as older people and the ageing
population, homeless households, troubled families, young people, people
with mental illness and learning disabilities, those experiencing domestic
violence, people with substance and alcohol abuse issues, the needs of
gypsies and travellers, BME communities, former armed forces personnel,
students, and those living in rural communities and considers the existing
services and housing available, and the actions required over the next five
years and beyond. Key actions within this section of the document
specifically relate to meeting the housing needs of people with learning
disabilities, mental illness, older people, rough sleepers, young people,
offenders, gypsies and travellers, the BME communities, people with physical
disabilities and other actions relate to improved access to housing within the
district. Meeting many of these actions will require collaborative working with
both Health and Lancashire County Council with jointly agreed strategies.



3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0

Page 3

Details of Consultation

Key stakeholders have been consulted on the draft document as many other
organisations will be critical to delivering the Housing Strategy and Housing
Action Plan. These include the Homelessness Forum (representatives from
Health, Adult Social Care, Probation Service, Supporting People Team,
Registered Providers of Social Housing — general needs and supported
housing providers, Help Direct, Lancaster District Homeless Action Service,
Lancaster and District Women’s Aid, YMCA and Citizens Advice Bureau), and
Council officers from both the Regeneration and Planning Service, Health and
Housing Service and Housing Benefits. = The document has also been
cascaded to the Affordable Warmth Steering Group, the Health and Wellbeing
Partnership, the Mental Health and Housing Forum and the Lancashire Drug
and Alcohol Team’s Joint Commissioning Group.

A consultation event took place on the 3™ July at the Storey Institute, with 33
delegates from the Homelessness Forum attending. The format of the event
comprised of a detailed presentation, covering the content of the document as
well as a housing strategy monopoly game, whereby delegates were asked to
allocate houses and hotels against a number of themes statements for each
section of the Draft Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan. The
consultation results are contained within the document.

The Draft Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan has been regularly
reported to both Planning Policy Cabinet Liaison Group and the Housing
Regeneration Cabinet Liaison Group.

Following the completion of an Equality Impact Assessment on the Draft

Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan in November 2012, there was a
final period of consultation carried out with no further comments received.

Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

Option 1: Recommend the
Lancaster District Housing

Option 2: Recommend the
Lancaster District Housing

Strategy and Housing Action
Plan to Council in its current
form

Strategy and Housing Action Plan
to Council with amendments

Advantages

The local authority will have
an up to date housing
strategy in place.

None.

Disadvantages

None.

Any further amendments would
necessitate further consultation
and another EqlA.

Risks

None.

Loss of reputation if the process
is delayed given than there has

been a three year period with no
housing strategy in place.

5.0
5.1

Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

The officer preferred option is option 1 to recommend the Lancaster District
Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan to Council in its current form.
There has been considerable work carried out on the preparation of the
document to date, which has taken nearly a year to complete, with extensive
consultation already carried out. Should members approve the document,
officers can continue to progress work on the key actions and priorities
identified in the Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan within the




Page 4

suggested timescales.

6.0 Conclusion

6.1 The Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan provides a detailed profile of
the current housing provision and housing markets as well as the district’s
future housing needs and requirements and defines the actions required to
ensure that the district can respond to current and future housing needs over
the five year action plan period and beyond. The Housing Strategy and
Housing Action Plan will be reviewed annually, with a formal mid-term review
planned, which will be reported to members and stakeholders.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

The Council’s Constitution (Article 4.01) includes the Housing Strategy as part of the policy
framework.

Corporate Plan 2012 — 15 Continuing work to improve the quality and availability of housing,
and enhanced quality of life of local residents through access to good quality housing,
increasing the number of affordable homes, a reduction in the number of homeless people
and a reduction in the number of people sleeping rough.

Regeneration and Planning Service Business Plan 2010/11 — To maintain an up-to-date
Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan.

Core Strategy 2008 SC4 — To meet the district's housing requirements by achieving 400
dwelling completions annually and providing a sufficient supply of affordable housing.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety,
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing)

An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out on the Housing Strategy and Housing
Action Plan, and following consultation with key stakeholders, no comments have been
received.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Action Plan has been amended to identify what can be achieved over the five year
period within existing resources and any aspects of the plan that may have current/future
budget implications.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Human Resources:

None.

Information Services:

None.

Property:




Page 5

There could be in the future if the any future affordable housing proposals involve the use of
council owned land.

Open Spaces:

There could be in the future if any future affordable housing proposals involve the use of
designated open space.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Kathy Sinclair
Telephone: 01524 582724
E-mail: ksinclair@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref:

None.




LANCASTER
CITY COUNCIL

i Promating City, Const & Countryside

Date: February 2013

www.lancaster.gov.uk/h




Page 7

Foreword

Welcome to our new Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan, which sets out
the council's plans for housing in Lancaster District from 2012 — 2017.

Lancaster City Council’s vision is to promote sustainable growth bringing
opportunities to improve the quality of life to its residents, help preserve our
natural environment, protect our wonderful heritage assets and create vibrant
and cohesive communities. Good quality housing is fundamental to this vision,
and the standard of accommodation is pivotal to our health and wellbeing,
aspirations and life-chances.

The Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan is intended to benefit everyone
who lives in the Lancaster District and forms part of wider policy framework which
focuses on the role of housing in meeting the economic, social and
environmental aspirations of the district.

There are three main themes contained within the Housing Strategy and Housing
Action Plan which are described as:-

Quantity — achieving sustainable growth in the Lancaster District
Quality — Regeneration priorities and improving the existing housing stock
People — meeting the housing needs of all parts of the community

These themes are underpinned by a range of key priorities for action, often
through partnership working, and include the continued provision of market and
affordable housing, investing in the existing housing stock, meeting our statutory
duties around homelessness and providing appropriate housing to the most
vulnerable people in the district.

We would like to thank everyone who contributed to the shaping of this Housing
Strategy and Housing Action Plan, which has been available for consultation
between July and October 2012, with a stakeholder event on the 3 July 2012.
The responses from the consultation are summarised in section 5 of this
document.

Councillor Karen Leytham:  Councillor Janice Hanson: ndrew Dobson:
Cabinet Member for Health Cabinet Member for " Head of Regeneration and
and Housing Economic Regeneration Planning
and Planning



Page 8

Glossary



Page 9

1 Glossary

This Glossary provides terms and references which will be of use whilst reading
the Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan. Some of the terms included
within this Glossary supplement and compliment the definitions found within
Annex 2 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

Affordable Homes Programme - The Affordable Homes Programme 2011-15
aims to increase the supply of new affordable homes in England. It is managed
by the Homes and Communities Agency. The majority of the new programme will
be made available as Affordable Rent with some for affordable home ownership,
supported housing and in some circumstances, social rent. This definition will be
reviewed at the end of the programme period.

Affordable Housing Viability Study - A study that tested the circumstances in
which the district's housing market can deliver various levels of affordable
housing by examining the influence of a range of affordable housing proportions
and thresholds on viability.

Brownfield - Also referred to as Previously Developed Land (PDL). The
regeneration of these sites is recognised as a priority within the local plan system
although challenged within the current economic climate.

Communities - Are a group of social interacting people, this interaction may be
due to the close proximity of where people live (i.e. within neighbourhoods) or
groups of people that share the same common interests or values.

Commuted Sums — monies received by the council from market housing _
schemes that can be subsequently provided as grants to social housing providers
to bring forward the development of affordable housing.

Concealed households - Family units or single adults living within ‘host’
households.

Conservation Area - An area which has been designated for its special
architectural and/or historical interest, the character or appearance of which it is
desirable to preserve or enhance. It is recognition of the value of a group of
buildings and their surroundings and the need to protect not just individual
buiidings but the character of the area as a whole.

Core Strategy - This is the key document within the local planning system, the
document sets out strategic policy guidance on future development requirements
and policy issues. Lancaster City Council adopted its Core Strategy in the
summer of 2008.

Development Plan Document (DPD) - Spatial planning documents which are
prepared by the local authority. They sit below the Core Strategy in strategic
importance but remain subject to public consultation and independent Inquiry.



Page 10

Both the Development Management document and Land Aliocations documents
are classified as Development Plan Documents.

Discounted market housing - Homes sold at a discounted price with the level of
discount differing from scheme to scheme depending on house prices in the
different locations, and according to eligibility criteria agreed between the council
and the developer. ‘

Extra Care Housing - Housing designed with the needs of older people in mind
and with varying levels of care and support available on site. People who live in
Extra Care housing have their own self contained homes and benefit from
communal facilities being available. Properties can be rented, owned or part
owned/ part rented.

Fuel poverty - Fuel poverty is determined when a home cannot be heated to a
comfortable level by utilising 10% or less of the household’s income. This means
that choices must be made between warmth and other essentials. Fuel poverty
can contribute to excess winter deaths, cold-related |Ilnesses high health care
costs, and deteriorating housing conditions.

Greenfield - Is land which has not been previously developed on, Greenfield
land is often but exclusively characterised by open countryside and agricuitural
land.

Gypsies and travellers - Persons of nomadic habit of life whatever their race or
origin, including such persons who on grounds only of their own or their family’s
or dependants’ educational or health needs or old age have ceased to travel
temporarily or permanently, but excluding members of an organised group of
travelling showpeople or circus people travelling together as such.

Homes and Communities Agency - The national housing and regeneration
agency for England. Provides investment for new affordable housing and to
improve existing social housing, as well as for regenerating land.

Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) - For the purpose of this document a
HMO is defined according to the Use Class Order 2010. A property is an HMO if
it is a small shared dwelling house occupied by between three and six unrelated
individuals, as their only or main residence, who share basic amenities such as a
kitchen and bathroom..

Housing Needs Survey - The Council's current evidence base on many homes
are needed, (market and affordable), and the type and size of homes required.
The survey was carried out in 2011 by David Couttie Associates and will be
updated throughout the Locai Plan period in accordance with relevant
Government guidance.

Key Services - In a rural context key services include a Post Office, basic shop,
primary school, and bus stop.




Page 11

Lifetime Homes Standard - Ordinary homes designed to provide accessible and
convenient homes for a large segment of the population from young children to
older people and those with temporary or permanent physical or sensory
impairments. Lifetime Homes have 16 design features that ensure the home will
be flexible enough to meet the existing and changing needs of most households.

Local Housing Need - The housing requirements of existing and concealed
households living with Lancaster District as evidenced in the 2011 Housing
Needs and Demand Survey and other appropriate evidence.

Localism - Is a term used by the current Government to encourage local people
and communities to take more ownership in local issues. In terms of planning
playing a greater role in shaping the future for their own communities through the
preparation of Neighbourhood Plans.

Local Development Documents - This is the collective terms for Deveilopment
Plan Documents, including the Core Strategy, Development Management DPD,
Land Allocations DPD, Area Action Plans, Proposals Maps and Supplementary
Planning Documents.

Local Planning Authority - The statutory authority (usually the local council)
whose duty it is to carry out the planning function for its area.

Market housing - Private housing for rent or for sale, where the price is set in
the open market. '

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) - A document published in March
2012 by the Department for Communities and Local Governments that sets out
the Government's planning policies for England and how these are expected to
be applied.

Planning policy for traveller sites - A document published in March 2012 by
the Department for Communities and Local Governments that sets out the
Government's planning policy for traveller sites.

Regional Spatial Strategies (RSSs) - Prepared by the former regional
government agencies (in the case of this region 4NW or North West Regional
Assembly). Regional Spatial Strategies provided planning guidance at a regional
level and set a series of development targets for each local authority area.
Following a change in Government in 2010 a decision was taken to abolish
regional government agencies (including 4NW) and Regional Spatial Strategies -
relying on a more local approach to planning through the local plan system. RSS
documents at this time do still have limited validity as the move to abolish them
moves through the courts. This process is now reaching its conclusions. The



Page 12

evidence base work that underpinned the strategy will remain valid until the
information it contains becomes out of date.

Registered Provider of social housing - The technical name for social
landlords that are registered with the Homes and Communities Agency. Most are
housing associations, but some are trusts, co-operatives and companies that
own or manage affordable housing. Now referred to as Registered Providers
(RP’s). A distinction between this system and the old system of Registered Social
Landlords is that a provider of social housing.can now be either a non-profit
organisation or a profit-making organisation.

Registered Social Landlord - The technical name for independent housing
organisations registered with the Housing Corporation under the Housing Act
1996. Most are housing associations, but there are also frusts, co-operatives and
companies. The term has now been replaced by Registered Provider of social
housing.

Rural locations - For the purposes of this document rural locations are defined
as Caton and Brookhouse, Halton, Hornby, Wray, Slyne-with-Hest, Silverdale,
Galgate and all other locations outside of the urban locations (as specified in this
Glossary).

Section 106 Funds — monies (commuted sums) collected from market housing
schemes, held by the council, that fund grants to Registered Providers to develop
affordable housing.

Section 106 Agreement - legally binding document or planning obligation that
sefting out specific requirements, and is normally used to secure on-site
affordable housing on market housing schemes, or commuted sums.

Sheltered Housing - Housing specifically for older and/or disabled people.
Includes a block or group of houses with resident or visiting scheme manager,
and individual houses, bungalows and flats, which receive support from a mobile
scheme manager or pendant (emergency) alarm service.

Stakeholders - Are groups, individuals or organisations which may be affected
by or have a key interest in a development proposal planning or housing policy.
They may often be experts in their field or represent the view of many people.

Supporting People - revenue funding provided by central government to
provide tenancy related support services to vulnerable groups to allow them to
live independently. ‘

Travelling show people - Members of a group organised for the purposes of
holding fairs, circuses or shows (whether or not travelling together as such). This
includes such persons who on the grounds of their own or their family's or
dependants’ more localised pattemn of trading, educational or health needs or old




Page 13

age have ceased to travel temporarily or permanently, but excludes Gypsies and
Travellers as defined above.

Urban locations - For the purposes of this document urban locations are defined
as Lancaster, Morecambe, Heysham, Carnforth and Bolton-le-Sands. Although
Bolton-le-Sands is not classed as an urban location in the adopted Core Strategy
it is recognised as being a large sub-urban village by both the adopted the Core
Strategy, and the (saved) Poiicy H10 of the adopted Local Plan.



Introduction



Page 15

1.1. The District of Lancaster accommodates a population of 138,400
residents, making us the second largest District within Lancashire. The
District contains the university City of Lancaster steeped in history,
tradition and culture and features an array of listed buildings and heritage
assets. The seaside resort of Morecambe and Heysham is situated along
the delightful coastal strip with stunning views across Morecambe Bay with
much improved beaches, promenade and stone jetty, full of potential and
with a much improved tourism offer. The small town of Carnforth and
service centre is situated within the northern part of the District nestied
within a number of unspoilt rural settlements and areas of outstanding
natural beauty. '

1.2 Lancaster is the most northern District within the county of Lancashire,
and to a large extent, has historically experienced high levels of self
containment in relation to its housing market. However, with the emerging
Energy Coast and M6 link proposals, there is the potential that this could
bring about greater links and movement between our neighbouring
authorities in Cumbria and Lancashire.

1.3 Whilst the District and its residents benefits from many wonderful heritage
assets and breathtaking scenery and countryside, there are also pockets
of acute deprivation in the urban areas of Lancaster and Morecambe,
which contain identified Lower Super Output Areas within the areas of
Poulton and the West End of Morecambe and in Skerton, north Lancaster.

1.4  This Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan aims to capture the
extensive range of housing related issues through understanding the
housing needs and requirements of our District, appropriate interventions,
and how, by working with key partners, these can be achieved and

* planned for over the Action Plan period. A number of other related
documents will form part of the overall framework to ensure our objectives
are linked and met:-

LANCASTER DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN
(CORE STRATEGY 2003-2021
ADOPTED JULY 2008)

HOUSING STRATEGY AND HOUSING ACTY
2012-2017 ‘

MEETING OLDERPEOPLES HOMELESSNESS  EMPTY HOMES TENANCY
HOUSING HOUSING STRATEGY STRATEGY STRATEGY
NEEDS SPD

POLICY



Page 16

Strateqic Context

1.5 The last Housing Strategy prepared for the District was published in 2005;
setting out the District’'s housing priorities up until 2009. At that time, the
housing strategy function transferred into the Regeneration and Planning
Service's Planning and Housing Policy Team. The new structure has
ensured that housing strategy staff can engage fully with colleagues in all

- aspects of planning and development management in relation to planning
applications, negotiating for affordable housing on new development,
determining the right mix of housing that is appropriate for the District, and
in advancing planning and housing policies and strategies to achieve the
best possible cutcomes.

1.6 Since the last Housing Strategy was produced, nationally and globally, we
are facing massive challenges in the housing and financial sectors which
have directly impacted upon the construction industry in relation to house
building and dwelling completions, and the availability of finance and
mortgage products to developers and prospective home owners alike.
Locally, dwelling completions within the Lancaster District fell to 99 in
2011/2012, of which 58 units were affordable housing.

1.7 A mandate was obtained to produce a new Housing Strategy and Action
Plan in 2010, (referred to in the Service Business Plan 2010/2011). in
order to progress this, Lancaster City Council commissioned a new
Housing Needs Survey early in 2011 which acts as the main evidence
base, informing much of the strategic housing agenda as well as the
strategic objectives and desired outcomes set out within this Action Plan.

1.8 The Lancaster District Local Strategic Partnership, which brought together
a number of public, private, community, voluntary and faith sectors,
developed and published a Community Strategy which set out a common
vision to improve the welibeing of our District residents. Although the LSP
was disbanded in 2012, a number of thematic groups still continue to
meet. The Planning Policy Team is currently represented on the
Lancaster District Health and Wellbeing Partnership.




1.9

1.11

Page 17

Working in partnership with other locail authorities

We acknowledge the importance of strong partnership working with other
local authorities. To build upon the established strategic partnerships with
other Lancashire authorities, the Council joined with the Mid-Lancashire
local authorities in central Lancashire, which include Preston, South
Ribble, Chorley and West Lancashire, to produce a Mid-Lancashire
Housing Strategy and Local investment Plan. This Mid-Lancashire
partnership was initially established in response to the Homes and
Communities Agency’s (HCA) approach to funding referred to as “the
Single Conversation”. However, a key priority of the current government
has been to disband regional structures and establish more local decision
making processes. We continue to work with our partners in Lancashire
in relation to housing policy and strategy, we form one of the twelve two-
tier authorities of Lancashire through the Supporting People programme,
and a draft Affordable Warmth policy has been produced with partner local
authorities on the Fylde Coast, which forms the North Locality Footprint for

joint working with the Primary Care Trust and the emerging Clinical

Commissioning Group.

HCA's Affordable Homes Programme Framework 2011 - 2015

The Council, as a stock retaining authority, is a provider of social housing,

and a strategic enabler of new build housing provision through Registered
Providers of Social Housing. A key partnership in the delivery of
affordable housing provision is our relationship with the HCA, who on
behalf of central government, direct and allocate funding to support
affordable housing schemes nationally. In the wake of the Comprehensive
Spending Review, there have been radical changes to the funding
mechanisms available to providers of social housing along with other
proposed social housing reforms which could have far reaching
implications locally and nationally. These proposed reforms were
published in 2010 and form part of the Localism Act, impacting upon
security of tenure, tenure types, housing finance mechanisms and housing
benefit changes.

Ahead of the Localism Bill getting Royal Assent, in February 2011, the
HCA announced their Affordable Homes Programme Framework
document 2011-2015 which sets out the new delivery model for achieving
150,000 new affordable homes over the programme period, along with
separate funding for other products including Empty Homes, Mortgage
Rescue, Firstbuy and Homelessness Change Grant. The replacement
tenure for social rent is “affordable rent” which places greater challenges
upon Registered Providers in securing the funding where far lower grant
rates apply and charging higher rent (up to 80% of market rents) in order
to deliver affordable housing schemes in the future, with the ability to
create fixed term tenancies should they chose to.



1.12

1.13

1.14

The Council, whilst accepting that affordable rents and fixed term
tenancies does not allow prospective tenants to enjoy the same benefits
as current social housing tenants, recognise that this new tenure is the
only mechanism available to secure future affordable housing provision
over the next four years and possibly beyond. To this end, Lancaster City
Council has supported bids from 7 partner Registered Providers to provide
a range of affordable housing schemes within the Lancaster District, which
are detailed on page 13.

Tackling homelessness and rough sleeping within the District has
historically been an ongoing concern to the Council, due to limited
provision of temporary accommodation and the difficulties faced in barely
meeting our own statutory responsibiliies. To reduce homelessness and
rough sleeping requires adequate resources, suitable hostel
accommodation and developing a holistic approach in re-integrating this
vulnerable group back into mainstream services and society as a whole.
As a result of this, the Council took the opportunity to bid for HCA
Homelessness Change Programme Grant in May 2011, to secure capital
funding to provide hostel accommodation for single homeless people over
25. The bid was successful, enabling the Council to move forward with
this project, which is detailed further in the “People” Section of this
document.

Objectives/Purpose

- The Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan will consider the local

context around housing provision and delivery and bring together a
number of key Corporate and Service priorities, drawing on local evidence
and information, and how these may be delivered. It will also inform our
partners about our priorities and how we intend to approach these. The
purpose of the Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan is to create an
accessible and barrier free approach to improving ocur communities and to
better meet the housing and support needs of existing residents. The
Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan contains three overall thematic
sections “quantity, quality and people”, that is:-

1. Achieving sustainable housing growth
2. Improving quality: sustainable communities and decent housing
3. Meeting a broad range of housing needs within the community



Page 19

Quantity



2.1.

2.2

2.3

Page 20

Quantity

Achieving Sustainable Growth in the Lancaster District

The Council seeks to achieve an average annual requirement of 400
dwelling completions per annum as set out in Policy SC4 of the adopted
Core Strategy. This is based upon a requirement for 7,200 new dwellings
over the period 2003/4 up until 2020/21. The target was initially set having
regard to the Regional Spatial Strategy and local evidence. Whilst the
Regional Spatial Strategy has subsequently been revoked, the Council is
in the unigue position in the North West of being only one of a small
number of authorities to have an adopted Core Strategy. The implication
of this is that to a large extent the authority has already localised a number
of issues with the Core Strategy being supported by a local evidence
base, community engagement and a local sustainability appraisal, all of
which were supported by an Independent Planning Inspector. References
to Regional Strategies are therefore to an extent largely factual with a local
approach adopted in the Core Strategy and supported by local evidence.

It was for this reason that the authority is still working to these targets at
present and the latest evidence available from the Housing Needs Survey
2011 support this approach, but will again be reviewed through the
preparation of the Local Plan.

Local Evidence - Key findings

The Lancaster District Housing Needs Survey 2011 was carried out by
David Couttie Associates and provides a range of detailed information
about the District's housing needs and requirements. Over 3,000
residents completed questionnaires along with 200 face to face interviews.
The Survey also brought together a wide range of local housing and
financial data and housing market stock analysis. The Housing Needs
Survey also sought to identify the trends in the demographic and
economic characteristics which can impact on the housing market, the
implications of balancing supply and demand, potential barriers to
accessing housing, the mix of market and affordable housing required,
target levels required for affordable housing and to consider any issues
that relate to specific household groups.

The Housing Needs Survey revealed that the average property price
within the Lancaster District in 2010 was £153,124 with sales falling by
14.4% since 2009 and by 35% from 2007. Income requirements for one
and two bedroom properties ranged from £13,800 to £33,900 per annum,
and simitarly, income requirements to pay private sector rents ranged from
£16,000 to £23,000 per annum. Analysis of concealed households living
in the District indicate that 45.5% have an income of less than £15,000.00,



2.4

2.9

Page 21

which means they are unable to access housing without relying on some
degree of subsidy.

Demographic Change

Over the period 2008 to 2033, the population is forecast to increase by
19,200 people, which is an increase of 13.8%, and for those aged 65 and
above, this group is expected to grow by 61.8%. Furthermore, there will
be significant increase in those over 85, representing 138%, with these
households needing support services, adaptations or specialist
accommodation. The Survey showed a net migration of 2,500 households
moving into the District, and of these, 800 were elderly people needing the
support of their family. 50% of those migrating into the District lived
outside Cumbria or Lancashire. Over the next three years, 25% of
existing households and 38% of concealed households plan to move out
of the District. The main reason cited was employment/access to work.

Future Housing Delivery

The Housing Needs Survey 2011 revealed an annual shortfall of 592
market housing units, and 339 affordable housing units, based on need
evidenced through the Survey and taking into account turnover supply.
This demonstrates that whilst the target set in the Core Strategy will
remain at 400 completions per year, the need is significantly greater.
Nevertheless, this has to be balanced with what is realistically and
sensibly achievable. To this end, the Council is preparing a Local Plan for
the District which in addition to the already adopted Core Strategy will 7
include three new Development Plan Documents (DPD’s), a Development
Management DPD setting out the criteria against which most routine
planning applications will be determined, a Land Allocations DPD, which
will identify and prioritise sites necessary to meet the future development
needs of the district and identify those natural and built assets should be
protected and enhanced, and an Area Action Plan for Morecambe to guide
regeneration and development proposals in Central Morecambe. The
proposed DPD’s have already been subject to detailed and wide-ranging
consultation. Further consultation on the Draft Documents commenced in
October 2012, this will be followed by further refinement and consultation
of the documents with a formal ‘Publication’ version of the documents
scheduled for consuitation in Spring 2013 and adoption envisaged in late
2014. ‘



Page 22

TABLE 1 — HOUSING COMPLETIONS

2.6

2.7

The emerging Local Plan will help to outline what is expected from the
development industry in terms of on-site affordable housing provision, and
since the housing strategy function has transferred to the Regeneration
and Planning Service, the monitoring of affordable housing is monitored
more closely and the occurrence of early stage discussions and
negotiations for market housing schemes should ensure that in future the
affordable housing target will be met.

Addressing Under-occupation

The Housing Needs Survey reveals that there are high levels of under-
occupation within the market housing sector (56% of owner-occupiers with
no mortgage), 15% under-occupation within the private rented sector and
9% under-occupancy in the social rented sector (which equates to 500
tenants). As a result of this, the Council needs to consider the aspirations
of these households, to provide suitable housing offers in the coming -
years. The key recommendations stemming from the Survey is that future
housing delivery should provide a mix of housing types and sizes. New

- market housing needs to address demographic change as well as the

current and future growth of the frail elderly. On this basis, the Survey
suggests that 60% of future housing provision should be one and two
bedroom dwellings, and 40% are three and four bedroom dwellings.




2.8

2.9

2.10

Page 23

Furthermore, identifying the aspirations of existing social housing tenants
would potentially create much needed vacancies with this sector. The
implementation of the Council's new Choice Based Lettings Scheme ‘|deal
Choice Homes” in October 2011 aims to increase the potential to increase
choice and improve mobility for social housing tenants both through
bidding for properties, having one central point of access for mutual
exchanges, and increasing housing options by including private sector
vacancies and intermediate housing products. Raising awareness and
improving the information and options available to social housing tenants
is critical to making best use of the social housing stock particularly in the
advent of the proposed welfare benefit reforms which will directly impact
upon households who under-occupy properties and reduce their housing
benefit entitlement. In broad terms, the Housing Needs Survey
recommends that new provision should be split between one and two
bedroom accommodation, and three and four bedroom accommodation.
There is already a significant demand for one bedroom accommodation in
the social housing sector, and the increase in demand for existing social
housing tenants directly affected by the welfare reforms could substantially
increase demand, particularly where social landiords have used under-
occupation policies for the better management of their housing stock.

Affordable Housing

The receipt of the Affordable Housing Viability Study in 2010 from Adams
Integra provided the Council with new evidence on the ability of the
District's housing market to deliver various levels of affordable housing.
This was achieved by examining the influence of a range of affordable
housing targets and thresholds on the viability of sample schemes. The
Study led the Council to prepare an Affordable Housing Practice Update
which described the process for negotiating affordable housing. This.
document was implemented in January 2011 and replaced the previous
version published in 2008 following receipt of the 2007 update of the
Housing Needs Survey. '

A comprehensive consultation process supported both the preparation of
the Affordable Housing Viability Study, and the preparation of the
Affordable Housing Practice Update. A key stakeholder group was
established that met three times during the preparation of the Study and
the Practice Update. The stakeholder group comprised residential
developers, planning agents, iand agents, and registered providers of
social housing, all of which operate in the district. The Council is currently
preparing a Meeting Housing Needs SPD and the preparation of this
document is underpinned by the earlier consultation work described
above.



Page 24

The requirements for affordable housing

2.11 The Council will seek on-site affordable housing from all market housing
development schemes to meet the identified shortfall of affordable units in
the District, and to promote socially inclusive and sustainable
communities.

2.12 The Council has previously required an affordable housing tenure ratio of
65% social rented and 35% intermediate housing. However, the Housing
Needs Survey 2011 acknowledges that an increasing number of
households will face real difficulty accessing market housing either
because of low incomes or because of the deposits required to secure
mortgages. As a result of this, the Survey suggested that the tenure mix
for future housing delivery should increase the percentage ratio of
intermediate housing to 50%, and this is a clear consideration for future
affordable housing negotiations. These recommendations will be
formalised and impiemented through the Council's Meeting Housing
Needs Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) which will come into
effect in 2013 subject to endorsement. The Council expects that on-site
affordable housing will be brought forward and managed through partner
Registered Providers.

Development in Rural Areas

2.13 In recent years the Council has permitted new rural residential
development in 8 settlements that retain 5 key services (a GP, Primary
School, Food Shop, Post Office and Bus Stop). The existence of these key
services ensures that settlements can support the communities that live
there. There are now very few GPs regularly practising within these 8
settlements and on that basis, other rural settlements that retain 4 key
services will also be considered.



2.14

2.14

2.16

Page 25

Housing Revenue Account — opporiunities through self-financing
arrangements

The Government is implementing a series of social housing reforms, as
detailed in the Localism Act 2011, which includes moving away from the
previous annual housing subsidy system to a model under which Housing
Revenue Accounts must be self-financing from April 2012..

Following the transfer to self-financing, the Council is now in a better,
more informed position to consider investment and growth opportunities
for its own council housing stock, and it has sufficient financial scope to
progress such opportunities. As a result, the Council will consider
proposals to increase its housing provision in the future, and to improve
and re-configure some of the Council’s existing housing stock, particularly
around low demand and difficult to let accommodation. In terms of
increasing supply, the Council has already approved in principle to invest
in new one-bedroom accommodation, as the first call on available
reserves. In order to balance the key aims of keeping rents affordable,
managing financial risks and supporting housing regeneration, the Council
has adopted a medium term rent setting policy which will result in average
rents being frozen in 2013/14, with 1% stepped increases in subsequent
years — rising to no more than a 3% target increase for 2016/17. This

“moves away from Government's rent convergence policy for social

housing. For the time being, a fairly cautious approach is being taken
about the council’s opportunities for increasing supply, as with the
imminent welfare reforms around under-occupation and the introduction of
universal credit, there are more challenges facing the council in coliecting
the rent due, which could directly impact on any future funding capacity.

Council owned land

A key policy issue, crucial to make the best use of resources and to
achieving affordable housing schemes that are viable in the light of
reductions in grant levels funded by the HCA, is the Council exercising its
powers to transfer ownership of its own land in accordance with its
Disposal Strategy, which is due for updating in 2013/14. Lancaster City
Council has identified a number of potential housing sites on its own land,
and has shared this information with partner Registered Providers in the
lead up to the HCA's Affordable Homes Programme 2011-2015 bids being
determined. As a result of this, five Registered Providers were successful
in securing grant funding for a number of sites identified, subject to the
necessary approvals being granted, which would provide between 40 — 60
additional units of affordable housing over the Affordable Homes
Programme period depending upon approvals.



217

2.18

2.19

2.20

Page 26

Section 106 funds

The Council has directly provided grant funding to partner Registered
Providers through monies previously collected through Section 106
contributions from market housing schemes. To date, grants have
supported the delivery of 63 affordable housing units across the District,
with the potential to provide two further grants to bring forward up to 70
additional affordable housing completions within the 2011-2015
programme period, subject to approvals.

The Affordable Homes Programme 2011 — 2015

The HCA's Affordable Homes Programme framework, was published in
mid February 2011. The framework set out the HCA's new delivery model
for achieving 150,000 new affordable homes between 2011 and 2015 and
invited registered providers to submit offers to help deliver this new supply.

To support this process, the Council published its own Investment
Priorities prospectus o capture investment from Registered Provider
partners over the four year programme period which set out the Council’'s
area based regeneration priorities, Brownfield land opportunities, the use
of Council owned sites, empty homes, the needs of vulnerable members
of the communities and stalled sites.

Seven Registered Providers bid for funding and five were successful in
securing grant to provide the following schemes, subject to all the
necessary approvals. The schemes that secured grant funding are
detailed on the next page. Those in red are proposed developments on
Council owned land. -




Page 27

paululziep ag 01

pauluLslap aq o1

£102 Youep
pauiLelep 8q ol
£102Z udy/yalepn
£L0Z MNP Dd

€107 Jowwng

paulwelap aq 0
pauiwlelep a9 ¢l
paunboe 10U 8)g

¢log uer

aliS Uo EIS

s|jeacidde oN

sjeaoidde oN
paacidde Buiuueid
s|eacidde oN

paaocidde Guluue|d
3ys uQo

abe)s Buluuejd

s|eaoidde oN

sieacudde ON.

sjeacidde oN
pancidde Buluueld

SNIBIS JUaLIND

SEE

=i

=t
=i
v

t<TA4

1A+
HiY
HN
Q/S

ainuay

spun g

SpUn ¢

spun g
spun 2
spun zj
spun 42z

sHuUn g¢

S}un O}
sjun gl
spun gl
Spun gl

sjun jejol

Ja)senue

Angawol pling meN — gHEN
jusy SIqeployyY — UiV
diysiaumo paieys — Q/S

paulalap aq oy

FNAVEHDOHd FONVHD SSINSSITIWOH

Jajsecuet

lajsenue]
laiseoue
ls)seoue
18iSE0UET

Joiseoue

a)Is spIm 1ou1sIg
Aguiog

puzi 1SSAA
AquioH

s|iela(] SWayag

5908|d 1BaiD)

ajdos4 40} $90B|d
S3I1UN0T) WSBYMON Ssauuing

1Pedu)

snjoepy

Japinoid paleisifiey

G102 - 1102 SNNVED0Ud SINOH 31aVAY04dY - ¢ 318Vl



Quality



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Page 29

Quality

The Council’s Regeneration Priorities

Lancaster District has its own economic footprint and largely self-contained
housing market. However, it does play a wider role in the north
Lancashire/south Cumbria area, particularly around Morecambe Bay. This
role is fikely to grow as the area's cultural and heritage assets are developed
and as a result of initiatives such as the "Energy Coast", a £2bn programme .
aimed at establishing the NW coast as a major national hub for low carbon
and renewable energy production. This will inevitably increase demand for
housing in areas that are environmentally sensitive.

Whilst energy is currently a significant and developing theme Lancaster
District has a number of further key assets that can be developed to
complement and strengthen the economy of Lancashire, and the North West
region as a whole. By strategically focussing on these assets the Council has
identified its current regeneration priorities; these are designed to deliver the
spatial objectives of the adopted Core Strategy on accommodating
sustainable economic growth within the context of the regional and national
agenda. '

In particular Lancaster District also has key growth areas related to higher
education and information technology, developing the Green economy, and
services provided through the public sector. Lancaster District's distinct and
widely acknowledged heritage and tourism assets also provide significant
opportunities for the growth of economic activities rooted in a positive sense
of place.

In terms of housing, the first priority should be to meet the District's needs
wherever possible, especially when the housing market is depressed.
However, the District's developing role as a sub-regional hub will require a
thorough examination of how housing needs in the wider Morecambe Bay
area can best be met in the future, this may be influenced by the implications
for the Energy Agenda and will be examined in detail at a local level during
the preparation of the emerging Local Plan. There is need to continue the
regeneration and investment process in Morecambe’s West End beyond the
extent of current specific interventions.

Morecambe West End Regeneration Programme

Morecambe's West End has been a principal area of focus over the last
decade and will continue in the foreseeable future. In partnership with the
HCA, the West End Masterplan was produced to guide the regeneration of the
area. To date considerable progress has been made with the key housing '
projects. There has been parallel progress on economic and tourism
development, and the prospects of a new nuclear power station at Heysham
and new M6 Link Road may prove a further boost.



3.6

3.7

Page 30

West End Road has seen several very large Houses in Multiple Occupation
(totalling 280m2) have the outriggers removed and lateral conversions to
create quality flats. 10 of the 15 target properties have been remodelled
improving both the quality of the conservation area and the tenure profile. This
project was delivered by Adactus Housing Association in partnership with the
Council.

Clarendon Road has seen large HMOs have the outriggers removed,
reducing the size of the properties and making them more suitable for single
family occupation. 26 of the 38 target properties have been remodelled for
outright sale and shared ownership improving both the quality of the
conservation area and the tenure profile. This project was also delivered by
Adactus Housing Association in partnership with the Council.

Clarendon Road, Morecambe

3.8

3.9

The former Bus and llluminations Depots has seen a private developer led
scheme to build 83 houses and flats. This was a stalled site but as Harron
Homes, the developer, was successful in securing “Firstbuy” funding earlier
this year, the development is now continuing.

The re-development of the former Frontierland theme park is a major priority
for the West End and is a prominent seafront site in private ownership. The
rear third of the site has been re-developed successfully to provide
Homebase, Next and DW Sport and Gym. The remainder of the site gained
outline permission for a mixed use development of predominantly residential
with some leisure and retail development. However, the previous developer
bid has collapsed and the development has stalled.




Page 31

310 Chatsworth Gardens Housing Exemplar was a flagship masterplan project to

3.11

positively change perception of the West End throug h the delivery of an
exemplary development. Due to market constraints the developer led new
build scheme has failed. A revised scheme is under development and
appraisal that aims to provide remodelled family houses that will demonstrate
the standard and quality that is attainable in the Masterplan area with existing
housing, supported by the HCA's “Cluster of Empty Homes” funding.

Marlborough Road is a completed project that has seen Adactus Housing -
acquire a former garage and 11 HMOs to provide two new housing
developments comprising of 23 units of affordable housing in the form of 12 x
2 bedroom flats and 11 x 3 bedroom family townhouses. Practical
completion was January 2012. The scheme was initially intended for shared
ownership but Adactus have needed to respond to market conditions and
difficulties in accessing mortgage finance and have converted the tenure toa
rent to buy initiative whereby the properties are rented on an affordable rent
initially and then converted into shared ownership or outright sale
subsequently.

Marlborough Road affordable housing scheme



3.12

Page 32

Bold Street is a three phase housing project led and funded by the Council.
Cabinet has previously prioritised the limited resources available through the
Regional Housing Board to the West End and in particular Bold Street. The
first phase was completed last year with a grant aided facelift scheme to 8
villa properties at a cost of £152K. Phase 2 is also completed, and involved
substantial remodelling of large 4 storey terraces that included the removal of
a storey costing £425K.

Bold Street, Morecambe

3.13

3.14

With the abolition of the Reglonal Housing Pot funding, the Council now faces
a real challenge in identifying the funding to complete the previously identified
regeneration priorities within the West End at Chatsworth Gardens and Bold
Street. The only prospect of future external funding has been through the
HCA’s Affordable Homes Programme. This has necessitated a change in
policy direction by creating some affordable rented units as part of the overall
mix of dwellings within the project area in response to current market
conditions.

The third phase concerns 17 two and three storey terraces of very poor
quality and 3 commercial properties to the rear of the 0.27 hectare site.
Acquisitions have been made as resources became available, which involves
recycling the capital receipts of sold units to advance the necessary
acquisitions of the remaining units. Three residential units have now been
demolished and it is anticipated that a further six may be demolished in the
near future. However, in order to acquire and facilitate a cleared site, the
cost is likely to be circa £800k.




3.16

3.16

317

3.18

3.19

3.20

Page 33

Current funding limitations mean that the investment plan for Morecambe is
limited to the projects listed, but this is a pragmatic and realistic approach in
an uncertain market for the short term. Following successful implementation
of the current projects a range of medium term housing initiatives will build
upon the achievements and look to realise the Masterplan vision.

L ancaster City Strategic Development Sites

In Lancaster, there are 2 strategic sites with high priority, in addition to the
developments that form part of Morecambe West End regeneration described
above, and these are:-

Luneside East is a site acquired by the Council, and is characterised by
extensive areas of unused or underused employment land. It requires
remediation and site preparation, and the HCA are deeply involved, however
the stalled market had left the site in abeyance.

Lancaster Moor North is a large listed former hospital building set in very
substantial Brownfield grounds with extensive amenity and recreation areas.
The site belongs to the HCA following English Partnerships acquiring it from
the NHS. The development had been delayed pending the HCA identifying a
suitable developer partner, as once again the stalled market held up progress.

Luneside Fast

Policy H4 of the Lancaster District Local Plan identified a site on Lancaster's
St Georges Quay as a housing opportunity site. To try and achieve a mixed
use development on this site, which will extend the successful regeneration
work already achieved on St George's Quay, the Council has undertaken a
programme of work to assemble a deliverable site, secure the support and
funding from public agencies, {the HCA and the North West Development
Agency) and the selection of a developer through an open and competitive
process, whose proposals best match the City Council’'s aspirations for the
development of this key site.

The Council has been working with developer CTP and Land Securities since
2005. Outline Planning Permission was granted in November 2002 for a
mixed use development including employment space and 350 dwellings. A
Reserved Matters Approval was granted in September 2007 for Phase 1a
which included consent for 23 dwellings. The Outline consent has a condition
that obliges the developer to secure the delivery of affordable housing. The
Council aims to lease the whole site to the developer to permit the site to be
prepared for development.

Significant progress had been made on site preparation; in iate 2006 a gas
holder was decommissioned and removed by National Grid plc and the
Council became the owner of the whole site following the Council making a
general vesting declaration under its compulsory purchase order (CPO) '
powers. All business occupiers vacated the site following the confirmation of
the CPO.



3.21

3.22

Luneside East development site, frontage to St George’s Quay

The developer CTP is identifying suitable partners and options to bring
forward the site. Terms have been agreed for the remediation of the site
(which has now commenced) having secured £4M through Growing Places
funding to clear the site and provide the necessary infrastructure for
commercial and residential development. The residential development of the
site will comprise of a lower density scheme than originally intended which will
provide around 150 residential dwellings. The scheme will provide around
20% on-site affordable housing, reflecting the associated site abnormals and
remediation costs involved.

[ ancaster Moor North

The Lancaster District Local Plan identified the former Lancaster Moor North
Hospital as a housing and business opportunity site. The Lancaster Moor
campus is readily visible from vehicles passing Lancaster on the M6 and is
close to Lancaster's distinctive Williamson Park and Memorial. The site,
previously the property of the Health Authority, is now in the ownership of the
HCA. In 2008, the Council granted consent for the development proposal that
would see the conversion of the large Listed Annexe building to dwellings and
the redevelopment of much of the rest of the site, including the demolition of
unlisted buildings for residential development. A Section 106 Agreement for
the site was signed in June 2008 to secure the provision of a new area of
open space within the site; listed building consent for the refurbishment of the
annex; a transport contribution and preparation of a travel plan for the




3.23

Page 35

development. Since obtaining permission the HCA has sought to dispose of
the site to a developer. Although activity stalled, the HCA undertook a tender
process in the summer of 2012 and have appointed P.J. Livesey and Storey
Homes to bring forward a scheme of 440 residential dwellings.

Because of the many constraints and extremely challenging requirements
surrounding the development of Lancaster Moor North, there has never been
any expectation that this regeneration priotity could realistically provide an
affordable housing contribution.

Lancaster Moor North (main building)



3.24

3.25

Page 36

Profile of Lancaster District Housing Stock

The District of Lancaster has a total housing stock of 61,570 dwellings (HSSA
2011). The Housing Needs Survey 2011 confirms that 60.5% of dwellings are
either detached or semi detached, 23.5% are terraced houses, 13.8% are
flats and the remainder are houseboats, caravans and mobile home
properties. The last Housing Stock Condition Survey was undertaken in
2004, which reported that 78% of the stock is owner-occupied, 4% is owned
and managed by Registered Providers, 6% is owned by the Local Authority
and 12% is private rented. These statistics demonstrate that the District of
Lancaster has higher levels of owner-occupation than the national average
which peaked at 72.5% in 2001, and lower levels of social housing in
comparison to the national average of 17% (English Housing Survey: Housing
Stock Report 2009). Historically, accessing market housing in the District was
an achievable aspiration of many working households, but with the increase in
house prices locally, the economic downturn and impact upon the labour
market, as well as difficulties accessing mortgage products, the need for
affordable housing products has never been greater. Whilst there is no
statutory requirement for local authorities to carry out Stock Condition
Surveys, more recent data would provide a clearer picture and
comprehensive evidence base around the dwelling stock, but there have been
no resources available to commission this work beyond the work done around
the Council’'s own housing stock.

Social Housing Sector

The current level of affordable housing stock {excluding discounted outright
sale properties) within the District is 5,938, with the local authority's housing
stock being 3,807 dwellings and a total of 2,131 Registered Provider stock
across the District. The vast majority of affordable housing stock is social
rented accommeodation, although in recent years, some Registered Providers
have moved towards providing shared ownership, in order to balance the
housing market and improve access to housing for those households who
would traditionally not qualify for social rented accommodation. The need for
shared ownership and other intermediate housing has been highlighted by the
Housing Needs Survey 2011, which recommends that future affordable
housing provision should contain of 50/50 split between intermediate and
rented units, informed by the number and financial circumstances of
concealed households across the District who intend to accessing their own
housing in the next three years. This recommendation will be formalised in
the forthcoming Meeting Housing Needs SPD.




3.26

3.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

Page 37

Lancaster City Council’s housing stock

The Council is a stock retaining authority which has already achieved the
Decent Homes Standard (the minimum standard set by Central Government
which it expected all social housing to meet by the year 2010). Furthermore,
the Council has developed its own Lancaster Standard, which exceeds the
Decent Homes Standard, and includes higher standards than the minimum for
individual properties as well as environmental improvements to contribute
towards achieving sustainable communities and well managed
neighbourhoods.

As mentioned previously, the Localism Act abolished the present housing
subsidy system and introduced a new self-financing model from April 2012.
The Council took on debt of just over £31M when the current subsidy
arrangements ceased, giving the Council greater financial autonomy.

In 2007, Cabinet resolved to develop the establishment of a 3-5 year
partnership for the future delivery of the Housing Revenue Account Capital
Programme. The Council has a long-term investment programme which
already identifies the resources needed to maintain a viable 30-year business
plan, which has been signed off by Government as being fit for purpose. The
programme takes account of the data collected by the 2001 and 2008 Stock
Condition Surveys which includes a comprehensive programme to provide
adaptations to existing housing stock, energy efficiency works and boiler
replacements, kitchen and bathroom refurbishments, external refurbishments,
re-roofing works, environmental improvements, rewiring and fire precaution
works. In the period 2012/2013 the cost of the proposed improvements is
just under £4M. In addition, the Council’s Revenue funded works will include
other environmental improvements (determined by tenants and residents
groups), rota painting, electrical inspections, lift repairs, gas servicing,
contract maintenance and miscellaneous work totalling over £1M, which
represents £5.274M investment into Council housing stock.

An important piece of work emerging from this Action Plan will be that the
Council considers the usefulness and appropriateness of its existing housing
stock for older people and formulates a District wide Older Persons Housing
Strategy. The Council and other providers of accommodation for older people
will need to carefully examine their existing housing provision, and whether
this will be adequate to meet the future housing needs of this group, and
consider and plan for the future housing requirements of older people, given
the demographic change expected due to an ageing population.

In general terms, demand for general needs social rented housing in the
District remains extremely high, and with the impact of the welfare reforms,
which have already brought about a reduction in the Local Housing Allowance
(which is now based on the 30" percentile), and the single room rent being
applied to single households under 35, demand is set to increase and may -
well impact upon homelessness presentations in the future.



3.31

3.32

3.33

3.34

3.35

Page 38

In recognition of the importance of maximising the availability of all social
housing vacancies, the Council implemented its “Ideal Choice Homes" Choice
Based Lettings Scheme (CBL) in October 2011, and has negotiated with a
number of partner Registered Landlords to increase the nomination
percentages received by the Council (which is normally 50% of vacancies).
Going forward, the CBL will provide opportunities to market all forms of
affordable housing, including shared ownership, as well as including private
rented accommodation.

A further initiative that the Council is launching is the installation of P.V. Solar
Panels at a number of its Category 2 sheltered housing schemes. The
proposed installations will not only be benefitting from generating electricity,

- with “cash back”, but will provide an opportunity for the schemes to draw

down the free electricity generated to service lifts, washers, dryers, and
lighting, which should reduce the service charges payable by tenants over
time. Work is scheduled to be completed by the end of the financial year
2012/13.

Registered Providers

The stock profile within the Registered Provider sector has predominantly
been developed over the last 30 years, often with a more modern design and
layout, except for schemes which have allowed Registered Providers to buy in
miscellaneous properties within the existing housing stock. Registered
Providers are committed to meeting decent homes standards and maintaining
their housing stock across Districts. However, Registered Providers will, on

-occasion, consider disposing units that are uneconomical to maintain or

improve, in order to support their development programmes. Whilst the
Council would normally be resistant to disposals, particularly on a large scale,
the HCA expect Registered Providers to manage their stock portfolios
effectively and use disposals as a means of delivering future affordable
housing schemes and maintenance programmes.

The HCA have pre-determined design and quality standards, which
Registered Providers must adhere to when bringing forward proposals for new
build schemes or through Section 106 negotiated on-site affordable housing.
These are described in more detail on page 30 of the document.

Private Sector Housing Stock

Improvements in the private sector housing stock have been largely
concentrated in the West End Projects, which has required a mixture of
interventions including clearance, new build, re-modelling and refurbishment
of the private sector housing stock. The work undertaken so far was
underpinned by the West End Masterplan document established in 2002,
which aimed to improve some of the worst housing conditions in the District,
and balance the housing market and tenure profile of the area by increasing
home ownership and owner-occupation. The interventions so far have
reduced the number of HMO’s in the West End, created larger units of




3.36

3.37

3.38

Page 39

accommodation, have improved the housing stock in that area and have
created a more diverse tenure offer by introducing shared ownership
initiatives. '

In previous years, the Council received an allocation of Regional Housing Pot
funds from Central Government, which was used to support regeneration

- schemes in the District. From 2011, the Regional Housing Pot funding

ceased and external funding for regeneration schemes can now only be
sourced through the HCA's Affordable Homes Programme 2011 — 2015.

Notwithstanding this, the Councit is still striving to improve the housing
conditions to private sector housing stock through enforcement, energy
efficiency works, the handyperson scheme, Disabled Facilities Grants, and
work around empty homes.

Enforcement

The Housing Standards Team continue to tackle poor housing conditions by
effectively using a range of methods to respond to category 1 and category 2
dwelling hazards. Much of their work is around educating property owners but
can also include enforcement and legal action.

TABLE 4 — CATEGORY 1 AND 2 DWELLING HAZARDS

3.39

3.40

The Housing Standards Team also encourage responsible renting within the
private sector and operate the Accredited Property Scheme with pre-
determined criteria depending upon the property type, which includes bedsits,
shared houses, lodgings, hostels/B&Bs, self contained flats and houses.

As well as ensuring properties accredited are of a desired standard, the
scheme brings benefits to landlords in attracting good tenants, reducing
turnover, properties being better looked after, free advice on landlord and



3.41

3.42

3.43

3.44

3.45

tenant issues, opportunities to find tenants through the Housing Options
Team, access to a mediation service and access to benefits advice.

The Council alsc has a long established Private Sector Landlords Forum,
which is an opportunity to engage with a wide range of landlords who operate
within the District, with meetings taking place on a periodic basis. The forum
provides a mechanism to discuss relevant and topical issues across the
private rented sector, and enables the Council to support and promote
responsible renting.

Energy Efficiency and Affordable Warmth

The Council recognises the importance of tackling fuel poverty, not only in
relation to the impact upon the housing stock, the health and wellbeing of
vulnerable members of the community, reducing excess winter deaths but
also as a means of reducing carbon emissions which all remain priorities for
central government.

To this end, a partnership was formed in 2011 between the four local
authorities of Blackpool, Fylde, Wyre and Lancaster, and the two primary care
trusts (PCTs) of Blackpool and North Lancashire, to develop an Affordable
Warmth Statement and 10 point Action Plan. Two consultation events took
place in 2011 giving an opportunity for engagement with key stakeholders to
look at how the action plan can be delivered, and progress is being made in
delivering and reviewing the 10 point Action Plan across the partnership.

Whilst keen to engage in this work, Lancaster District already had an
established affordable warmth steering group which is a partnership between
the Council, the PCT, Lancashire County Council, Help Direct, CAB and
LESS. Joint funding from Lancaster City Council, NHS Public Health and the
Department of Health currently provides a wide range of affordable warmth
measures for vulnerable households to combat fuel poverty and reduce
hospital admissions. This service is delivered through the Council’s Home
Improvement Agency and is available to residents meeting one of the
following criteria:

» Over60

e Disabled

» Residents with Long Term Health conditions

¢ Families on a low income.

The service offers a wide range of practical assistance to help residents
remain warm and safe in their homes over the winter period. The measures
available will depend on the resident’s individual circumstances, some
examples of measures which can be undertaken include:

e General repairs, maintenance and improvements to homes to make it
warmer and easier to heat.

¢ Repairs or replacement of heating systems, gas/electric safety checks and
boiler services,




3.46

3.47

3.48

3.49

Page 41

¢ Repairing or replacing timers and programmers,

e Provision of temporary heaters until permanent solution found

Fuel top up cards to maintain a heating supply and assistance with
payment of fuel debt arrears

Electrical repairs required to enable installation of heating systems
Replacement or repair of old draughty windows and doors.
Enhanced Insulation and draught proofing throughout the home.
Fitting cold alarms and carbon monoxide testers.

Clearances of lofts to allow insulation to be installed.

Any work which prevents slips, trips, falls and other home safety type
works

Gritting of paths and fitting handrails to prevent slips in icy weather.
o Home safety type work to prevent slips, trips and falls.

In addition, the council has recently employed a part-time officer to tackle
housing conditions around excess cold and damp, through working with
private sector landlords and taking enforcement action where necessary. A
very recent initiative is the Lancaster Collective Energy Switching Scheme
which, along with other Lancashire local authorities, allows residents to enter
an auction for the best energy deal.

Furthermore, LESS, a community interest company has been offering free
home energy surveys to residents of the District, across all tenures, to provide
a range of advice to residents about reducing their energy bills, providing °
personalised energy reports which set out recommendations for energy
saving measures along with providing information about free and subsidised
grants that may be available. Since the new service was launched, LESS
have completed over 400 energy surveys and has recruited 45 volunteers for
this project. LESS are exploring funding opportunities to enable their service
to continue, which has been extremely effective in assisting households to
reduce their energy bills.

Home Improvement Agency

[Lancaster City Council has continued to expand its in-house Home
Improvement Agency (HIA), which has been supported through funding
provided by the Lancashire Supporting People Programme and the PCT by
offering a range of services to older people within the District.

The HIA helps vulnerable residents who are elderly disabled or on a low
income to repair, improve, maintain and adapt their homes. This is achieved
by providing services and free impartial advice on repairs and maintenance,
energy efficiency as referred to above, home safety, getting building
estimates, increasing benefits and raising finance to carry out work,
independent advice on moving home and providing information on Safe
Trader registered contractors. '

Handyperson Scheme




Page 42

3.50 The Handyperson scheme is now a District wide scheme available across
- tenures, as long as the work required is not the responsibility of the landlord
and the tenant has permission to carry out the work. The scheme covers all
basic plumbing work and small jobs around the home, and more recently, the
handyperson service has been expanded to delivery the security works
needed to deliver the Sanctuary Scheme, which has now been rolled out to
assist and support victims of serious cases of anti-social behaviour.

TABLE 5 — HANDYPERSON JOBS COMPLETED

Disabled Facilities Grants

3.51 Providing suitable interventions for older people and those with special needs
is supported through the provision of Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG’s). The
Health and Housing Service operates its own budget to pay for adaptations to
Council dwellings, but all other DFGs to home owners or private sector
tenants are administered through the HIA.

3.52 Lancaster's approach to providing Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) is to
undertake the work recommended by an Occupational Therapist. Work
includes access to and within properties, kitchen and bathroom alterations,
provision of adequate heating and modifications/alterations that allow disabled
people to live independently in a safe environment. The maximum grant
available is £30,000.

TABLE 6 - DFG’S COMPLETED

Empty Properties

3.563 Bringing back empty properties into use is an agreed Cabinet priority, and a
key outcome of this Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan will be to
develop an empty properties strategy early in the Action Plan period.

3.54 As part of the Afforda.ble Homes Programme 2011-2015, the HCA have
providing three tranches of funding around empty homes: £100M funding to




3.55

3.56

Page 43

social housing providers to create affordable housing from empty properties,
£30M funding to Community Groups, and £50M for clusters of empty homes.

The Council has supported Methodist Action (NW), a Preston based charity,
to make a sub-regional bid for funding along with Preston City Council and
South Ribble Borough Council. Methodist Action’s bid was successful, and
this has provided an opportunity to bring up to 20 properties back into use in
the Lancaster District. Up to £12K (depending upon the dweiling size) capital
funding can be spent on properties that have been vacant for a minimum
period of 8 months, and in return, Methodist Action will lease the property
from the owner for a 10 year lease period through a social lettings agency,
with nominations being provided through the Council's Housing Options
Team. The HCA have announced further funding for empty homes which
includes commercial properties, and given the good progress made so far
with this partnership, Methodist Action intend making a further bid which could
provide a further award of funding to bring another 30 properties back into use
in the Lancaster district.

In terms of achievements so far, since the period 2008/09, the number of
private sector vacant dwellings returned to occupation has totalled 136 as
follows:-

TABLE 7 — EMPTY PROPERTIES BROUGHT BACK INTO USE

200910 oo

20




3.57

3.58

3.59

3.60

3.61

3.62

3.63

Page 44

Quality of new and future housing provision

Local Planning Authorities are encouraged, where appropriate and viable, to
adopt nationally described standards and set their own policies in relation to
the Code for Sustainable Homes. The draft Local Plan, when adopted, will
require new dwellings to meet Code Level 4 subject to viability. it is hoped
that by 2016, new dwellings will achieve Code Level 6.

The Council actively encourages any new dwellings to comply with Lifetime
Homes standards, even though this is not a statutory requirement at present.
Furthermore, all planning applications are scrutinised by the Council’s
dedicated Access Officer, who will comment and influence all new proposals
from a design and access suitability viewpoint, and will make detailed
recommended changes to developers, to ensure new housing provision is fit
for purpose in the future, and can be easily adapted to meet the changing
needs of our communities. This will be particularly relevant to the key findings
identified by the Housing Needs Survey’s suggested mix and size of future
housing provision, to cater for the needs of households under-occupying
dwellings across tenures, whose needs could easily change over time.

The HCA expect that social housing providers will produce well-designed,
good quality housing to meet identified needs in places where people want to
live. The HCA operate a scoring system to assess the design and quality of
any new development brought forward by a Registered Provider, whether or
not grant is being provided. The scoring system (known as Housing Quality
Indicators} is based on a matrix of different criteria around three core
performance standards which are:-

Internal environment — size, layout and service provision, which includes, but
is not limited to, wheelchair-user housing, higher density family housing, rural
housing, housing for older people, supported housing and BME provision.

Sustainability — the code level to be achieved in relation to the Code for
Sustainable Homes. '

External environment — building for life and creating well mixed and integrated
communities with an appropriate balance between private and public open
space.

All new dwellings and any dwellings that are acquired by Registered Providers
through negotiated Section 106 on site affordable housing, should meet the
HCA'’s design and quality standards which is part of the HCA's requirements
through the Affordable Homes Programme contracts.




Page 45

People



4.

4.1

4.2

43

4.4

Page 46

People

Meeting the housing needs of all parts of the community

The Council, as both an enabler and provider, plays a fundamental role in
meeting the needs of vulnerable people that live within our community. The
term “vulnerable” or “socially excluded” describes groups that are likely to
have additional housing needs and will experience poorer outcomes if these
needs are not met. These groups include:-

People with physical and/or learning impairment/disability or mental ill health
Homeless households

Troubled families

Young people

People suffering domestic abuse

People with a history of substance misuse/dependency

People with a history of offending behaviour

People from BME/Gypsy and Traveller communities

Older People

Former Armed Forces personnel

The Housing Needs Survey 2011 showed that 23% of people living within the
District have a disability or support need, which is higher than the national
average. Meeting the needs of vulnerable people is very often two-fold. Itis
concerned with providing suitable housing, and providing the appropriate
support needed for people to meet their needs and aspirations.

Supporting People

The Supporting People (SP) Programme is a Lancashire partnership between
Lancashire County Council, the 12 District Councils {(excluding Blackpool and
Blackburn), Health, Probation and Lancashire Drug and Alcohol Action Team.
The programme funds both accommodation based tenancy support related
services, such as supported housing, sheltered housing, refuges and hostel
accommodation, as well as non-accommodation based support such as
floating tenancy support and family intervention projects. Each
District/organisation is represented on the Supporting People Commissioning
Board, which is the decision making body responsible for the commissioning
of services funded through the Supporting People programme.

Accommodation based services are largely defined as accommodation with
on-site staff who directly provide tenancy related support to residents. There
are various models of services within the District, which range from
accommodation in a communal setting, and/or with some shared facilities, to
self contained units of accommodation. Tenancy related support generally
includes assessing support needs, support planning and risk assessment,
help to maintain occupancy conditions, developing a range of life skills and
tasks such as cooking, home safety and maintaining a home, claiming
benefits, help with budgeting, reviewing progress, setting targets and



4.5

4.6

4.7

Page 47

identifying when residents are ready to progress into general needs
accommodation, and supporting them through this process. There are a
range of accommodation based services that are detailed within this section
for a variety of vulnerable groups. ‘

Non-accommodation based services is often described as floating tenancy
support, whereby the support is provided by visiting staff, and is often
provided by a different organisation than the accommodation provider. A
number of years ago, several organisations across Lancaster District

~ delivered floating tenancy support, but in order to rationalise budgets and

deliver services in a more consistent way, three contracts were established for
the north, south and east locality groups. In 2007, Disc were awarded the
floating support contracts for both the north and south localities, and currently
deliver the contract locally on a partnership basis along with a number of
other organisations, such as Lancaster and District Homeless Action Service,
Richmond Fellowship, Inward House Projects etc. This means that the Disc
partnership, whilst being procured as one contract, includes a number of
specialist providers who have considerable expertise in working with a wide
range of vulnerable groups.

The total SP budget for Lancashire in the period 2011/12 was £27.5M, and of

- this, Lancaster received 11.7% of the County’s budget to fund our District's

projects. However, the budget has been subject to cuts over the
Comprehensive Spending Review period, and possibly beyond, which will
inevitably put pressure on services that require supporting people funding.
To manage the budget cuts, there are strict rules around the commissioning
of new services, and the County has already implemented a series of
measures concerned with the payment/capping of hourly rates of service
providers and the modelling of support hours to ensure there is equity and
consistency in relation to the funding provided by the SP programme
throughout the County. Furthermore, in preparation for the issuing of future
SP contracts, a series of commissicning plans has been drawn up for each
socially excluded group to ensure the most appropriate model of delivery for
each service will apply. Another important aspect of the SP programme is
around personalisation, which is intended to give service users the ability to
exercise real choice over the services they receive, wherever possible.

Of significant importance to the delivery of the SP programme across Districts
is that there is no agreed methodology to determine how the grant is currently
distributed across the County at the present time. A model that was initially
proposed is formula based on 60% deprivation and 40% on population levels
for each District. However, a more needs based methodology is being ‘
considered which takes account of a more sophisticated range of data
including by client group. Further testing around the model proposed has
been undertaken and will be applied subject to consultation and agreement
through the Commissioning Board. The need for a formal means of
distributing the grant has become more acute as the County have to
determine a consistent approach to achieving the necessary savings due to

~ budget cuts of £1.4M which need to be achieved in 2015. Once the new



4.8

4.9.

4.10

4.11

412

Page 48

model has been endorsed, the Commissioning Board wili need to consider
how the necessary savings can be achieved in each district.

Lancaster District is in a unique situation with regard to the SP strategy
formation, service provision and governance arrangements because of our
geographical position. Lancaster is currently placed within the North Locality
grouping along the Districts of Wyre and Fylde (which aligns with the PCT
boundaries), but for the purposes of the HCA's Local Investment Plan and
funding arrangements, Lancaster forms part of the Mid Lancashire authorities
along with Preston, South Ribble, Chorley and Mid-Lancashire, giving rise to
the partnership formed in preparation for the Mid-Lancashire Housing
Strategy. These groupings may be subject to review in the future.

People with Learning Disabilities and/or Physical Disabilities

The services provided for those with learning disabilities are currently fully
integrated with adult services, and are funded and commissioned through
separate governance arrangements within the SP programme. Often,
people with learning disabilities also have physical disabilities and require
very specialist accommodation and care. Both Lancashire County Council
and the City Council will need to take account of the aspirations of those with
learning disabilities in how future services are modelled. In particular, some
service users have a desire to move away from group settings and live
independently and there will be a greater reliance upon assistive technology
to enable service users to do this. lt is critical that Lancashire County Council
works closely with the Council to ensure that the future needs of this group
are carefully mapped and identified so that there is sufficient provision of
suitable accommodation for this purpose. Focus groups across the three
localities of the County are planned to look at this in more detail, and any
proposed new developments will require endorsement from Housing Benefit
Managers, with new housing being provided by Registered Providers under
normal circumstances.

Meeting the needs of those with physical disabilities and/or sensory
impairment can often be complex, depending upon the requirements of the
individual, their care needs and the household composition.

The vast majority of the local authority’'s housing stock was not built or
intended to meet the varying needs of wheelchair users. However, the
Council is fortunate in having a dedicated budget set aside for adaptations to
Council dwellings. Large scale alterations can be costly and do not always
provide a long term solution in some cases. This is why it is so important that
new housing is provided to lifetime homes standards, which are easily
adaptable to meet changing needs. There are well established links with the
Community Occupational Therapy Teams who provide detailed information
about the needs and requirements of households where a member of the
family has a disability, and joint assessments can be undertaken to check the
suitability of any housing being offered.

Through the planning process, and during negotiations for affordable housing,
the Council will seek to secure some provision of wheelchair properties as




4.13

4.14

415

4.16

Page 49

part of the on-site affordable housing on a site by site basis. Furthermore,
any sites which are wholly affordable rented housing will normally include
some wheelchair provision where possible.

There are a small number of purpose built wheelchair units across the existing
social housing stock, which is generally level access flats or bungalow
accommodation, as well as wheelchair properties within some of the sheltered
housing schemes. A handful of properties have through floor lifts installed,
generally where the family composition is too large for their needs to be met in
leve! access accommodation. All social housing providers should make the
best use of these properties when vacant and endeavour to allocate
properties to those households who needs best match. A potential area for
development would be to consider compiling a register of adapted social
housing, which is recognised good practice, to ensure the most appropriate
matching of suitable applicants through the Council's Choice Based Lettings'
Scheme, with agreement that all adapted properties are advertised through
the CBL with appropriate labelling of property attributes.

People with Mental liiness

In Lancaster District, Lancashire County Council/Lancashire Care Foundation
Trust (LCFT) are responsible for the collaborative (health and social care)
commissioning or rehabilitation and supported housing schemes. In this
District, there is a range of supported housing models for people who suffer
mental illness, depending upon their care needs. Some of these units are
owned and managed by Lancashire County Council/LCFT, Registered
Providers, who may or may not provide the care/tenancy support, and Private
Sector Providers. '

A Lancashire wide review is underway which seeks to define a rehabilitation
and supported accommodation service model by mapping current provision,
commissioning an improved service model within a more robust performance
management framework for inclusion in contracts. The aim of the review is to
ensure the new model will provide a consistent approach across the County
and reduce the disproportionate growth in numbers and time spent in
residential, nursing home and out of area treatment placements including
secure and specialist services.

There is an acknowledgement that all PCTs and local authorities around the
financial constraints imposed as a result of the current economic climate, and
this will clearly impact on the resources available to commission future
services. The review aims to achieve improved efficiency and effectiveness
from the current resources available. Furthermore, there are limited
resources to provide move on accommodation for this group, and with the
onset of reduced grant rates from the HCA and pressures on the Supporting
People Programme budget, have resulted in a much more challenging
environment to bring forward new housing provision. The need to make the
best use of the private sector is therefore crucial to developing the new model.



4.17 There are a number of structures already in place to ensure that there is
effective partnership working and dialogue between the relevant statutory
organisations and service providers, through the North Lancashire Mental
Health and Housing Forum, the Supporting Pecple North Locality Group and
Commissioning Board, and, more recently, through the Adult Mental Health
Placement Panel, which is represented by Lancashire County Council, LCFT
and the Council.

Homeless households

4.18 The Council restructured its homelessness and housing needs teams to
create a larger Housing Options Service. This coincided with the
implementation of the Council’'s Choice Based Lettings Scheme (CBL), which
replaced the previous points based allocation scheme in favour or a simplified
banding system. The rationale for implementing the CBL beyond meeting the
Government's statutory requirements were to increase the range of properties
available within the social and private rented sector. In turn, this would
improve the housing options available to a wide range of groups, including
homeless households, and in particular, as a tool for homelessness
prevention, which extends beyond assisting only those households where a
statutory rehousing duty applies. The Council will shortly be reviewing the
impact of the new CBL to ensure that the new arrangements are not
adversely impacting upon the length of time homeless households are placed
in temporary accommeodation in the longer term.

4.19 The Council has achieved a lower number of statutory homeless acceptances
in recent years as detailed below. Furthermore, the Council has met its target
to reduce temporary accommodation by 2012, Our target was to reduce the
number of temporary accommeodation units to 12, but in fact we have reduced
the number of units to 7.  The Council works in partnership with Adactus
Housing Group, who own and manage the 7 self contained (furnished and
unfurnished) dispersed units of temporary accommeodation for families.

4.20 The Council currently receives Supporting People funding to provide a Family
Intervention Project aimed at vulnerable households at risk of homelessness.
The project provides a much high level of intervention and support than that
provided through floating tenancy support, and generally only supports five
families at any one time to ensure the holistic package of wrap around support
is provided dovetailing with other relevant statutory and non-statutory
organisations. The Supporting People programme will probably not fund this
service beyond 2013/2014, due to a new initiative called "Working Together
With Families” a new approach around multi-agency working, which will be
part of the wider “Troubled Families” framework.




Page 51

900
| 800
700
- 600
500
400
300
200
- 100

Historical Homeless Application Statistics 2002-2012

B Acceptances

4.21

4.22

423

Reducing Mortgage Repossessions

The Council operates a Mortgage Repossession Prevention Fund targeted at
households who are at risk of losing their home due to mortgage arrears. The
Fund offers small interest free loans following a full financial assessment, and
a repayment term will be determined on a case by case basis based on
affordability.

Another initiative that has been successful in reducing homelessness in

L ancaster District has been the use of the mortgage rescue scheme, which is
a scheme that should only be utilised when all other homeless prevention
tools have been exhausted. Mortgage rescue is a government funded
scheme, launched on the 1% January 2009, to assist households who are
struggling to keep up with mortgage payments who could be at risk of
homelessness through having their home repossessed. The eligibility criteria
mirrors those households who would be owed the full rehousing duty by a
local authority i.e. a household with dependant children or an expectant
mother, or with someone elderly, disabled or vulnerable in some other way.
Household income is restricted to £60K per annum. For the mortgage to rent
scheme, a price cap of £135K per property applies in the North West, an
upper ceiling on the decent homes work required is £20K per property and the
purchase price paid by the Registered Provider cannot exceed more than
90% of the current market value.

To date, Lancaster District has had 15 successful mortgage rescue
completions. In the North West and the scheme is currently administered by
Plumlife (part of the Great Places Housing Group), who are the HCA's zone
agents. Locally, the Council has provided funding to the Citizens Advice
Bureau to undertake the necessary financial assessments required for the



4.24

4.25

4.26

Page 52

scheme, forming part of their specialist housing and debt advice service.
Although the government is continuing to fund the mortgage rescue scheme,
the funding available and criteria applied has been subject to change, and is
less favourable in relation to the funding available and the grant rates that
apply to Registered Providers purchasing properties. At the present time,
Plumlife/Great Places are seeking to increase the number of Registered
Provider Syndicate Partners to purchase mortgage rescue properties, to
ensure there is sufficient capacity to take further referrals locally. The Council
has been encouraging R.P. partners to support Plumlife in this regard.

Homelessness Change Programme Funding

The Councit successfully bid for funding under the HCA’'s Homelessness
Change Programme in the summer of 2011, which, subject to the necessary
approvals, will provide an 18 unit hostel accommodation (6 crisis beds and 12
move on units) for rough sleepers/single homeless people over 25. This will
be a significant achievement for the District, as there has never been any
bespoke provision for this socially excluded group, whose needs are complex
and where a very holistic approach to tackling the issues that entrenched
homelessness often requires. A report was presented to Cabinet in February
2013 setting out the options to deliver the project, which should result in the
hostel being provided by the end of March 2015, to satisfy the HCA’s grant
requirements, subject to the necessary savings being achieved to provide
revenue funding through the Supporting People Programme.

Enhanced Housing Options

From July 2012, the Council will be delivering an Enhanced Housing Options
Service, by introducing new arrangements to continue to prevent '
homelessness in the District. This will build on the work undertaken by the
Doorstep Project, delivered by Lancaster YMCA, with the new service being
delivered in-house. Two dedicated Homeless Prevention Officers have been
appointed who will be providing more detailed assessments and linking in with
specialist services around drug and alcohol services and financial
assessments with support into training, volunteering and employment

. opportunities, as well as providing support for those at risk of homelessness

and assisting those homeless households to secure accommodation where
there is no formal homeless presentation or where there may not be a
statutory duty accepted under the homeless provisions.

The Council is now delivering a social lettings agency in the District through
Methodist Action North West (referred to in paragraph 3.52 under empty
properties). Methaodist Action already successfully runs a social lettings
agency in Preston, South Ribble and Greater Manchester. The new scheme
provides greater access to the private rented sector as MANW will enter into a
leasing agreement with landlords and will manage the properties, which will
be let by taking referrals from the Council’s Housing Options Team. This
increases the availability of good quality rented accommodation, as well as
offering some certainty to private landlords.




4.27

4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

Page 53

“No Second Night Out”, is a recent Government initiative to end rough
sleeping nationally. Lancashire authorities are responding to this agenda by
adopting a county wide strategy and policy which seeks to reconnect rough
sleepers and homeless people who have a connection to another District in
Lancashire, where they can access accommodation and/or support networks,
and are enabled to return to this area in a planned way.

The Council has drafted its own “No Second Night Out” Policy and Protocol
and a complex needs panel has been set up to develop and maintain
intelligence and information about rough sleepers, and look at timely
interventions, such as fast tracking of detox/drug rehabilitation services.
There is one single point of contact for reporting rough sleepers through a
dedicated telephone number, better information about incidents of rough
sleeping with more regular counts, development of street outreach services in
Lancaster and Morecambe, co-ordinating cold weather provision and offering
individualised solutions ensuring timely support with a range of outreach and
reconnection services. The council is also hoping to set up an interim
homeless project for single homeless people and rough sleepers pending the
development of the 18 unit hostel, and has very recently secured funding
through the Government’'s Homelessness Transitional Funding in conjunction
with the Foxton Centre, a Preston based charity co-ordinating the No Second
Night Out initiative across Lancashire, to develop the work to end rough
sleeping.

Both Lancaster Homeless Action Service and Morecambe Homeless Action
Service provide a day centre for those who are homeless or in housing
poverty. More recently, Lancaster Homeless Action Service have changed
their remit to more targeted intervention with homeless people who are willing
to engage with a support plan and work towards accessing mainstream
services and housing. The Council fully endorses this approach as there has
been a shift away from traditional day centre models which can often
encourage dependency. Most local authorities now operate and embrace the
need to ensure day centres do support the use of a more proactive approach
to tackling rough sleeping to deter people away from this lifestyle which is
inevitably harmful. This should mean that services are only offered to those
people who are working towards engagement with mainstream services in
order to overcome homelessness and any secondary issues such as
offending and substance misuse.

Lancaster Homeless Action Service currently provide the “TLC" Resettlement
Service, through crisis funding, which helps single people obtain housing with
a private landlord and provide the necessary support for them to settle in and
maintain their tenancy. The crisis funding for this scheme ends in March
2013.

As referred to above, Lancaster Homeless Action Service are a partner of
DISC, who deliver the North Lancashire contract for floating tenancy support
funding by the Supporting People Programme, as they have over 20 year
experience of working with the homeless, and were a previous provider of
tenancy related support in the Lancaster District.



4.32

4.33

4.34

4.35

4.36

4.37

Page 5

Young People

The needs of young people experiencing homelessness or leaving care are
captured through a framework of services and partnership working in the
Lancaster District.

Across Lancashire, there has been collaborative multi-agency working to
prevent homelessness in young people aged 16 and 17, prompted by the
“Southwark judgement”, which clarified the legal responsibilities placed upon
children’s social care providers and housing providers and set out that the
Children Act 1989 takes precedence over the Housing Act 1996. To this end,
a Lancashire Wide Housing Strategy Group has been set out to develop and
implement a joint working protocol and guideless across the 12 Districts, the
development of a Youth Homeless Strategy and the establishment of a county
wide prevention project. CLG funding has been secured to deliver projects,
which initially set out to identify hotspots, and develop suitable models for
implementation across footprints. The interventions inciude respite
accommodation, family support and mediation, welfare rights advice,
rehousing and specialist support. The projects are being evaluated by
Lancaster University to measure outcomes and monitor progress.

A Young People’s Housing Panel has been operating for a number of years,
which is a partnership between Lancaster City Council, Lancashire County
Council's Children’s Services, the Youth Offending Team and supported
housing providers, which are Salvation Army Housing Association and
Adactus Housing Association. The panel meets fortnightly and considers the
most appropriate intervention for every young individual who is referred to the
panel, which can included crisis provision, supported housing, supported
lodgings, mediation/ returning to family and progressing into independent
accommodation when this is deemed appropriate.

The Council made a bid through the former Places of Change initiative, which
funded a new development provided by Adactus Housing Association in the
City Centre offering 6 crisis beds at New Road, and 11 self contained flats at
Mariners View.

A new scheme was commissioned with Supporting People funding, to provide

supported housing for teenage pregnant households, who are often not ready
to manage an independent tenancy. However, although the contract was
awarded nearly two years ago, there have been difficulties finding suitable
premises, which has halted the proposed scheme. The Council is very keen
to work in partnership with other agencies to work towards a reduction in
incidents of teenage pregnancy, as historically, there have been high
incidents of teenage pregnancy in this District. The prevention work

" undertaken has included engagement work with secondary schools Year 10

pupils along with early intervention work and mediation services for young
people facing homelessness.

Salvation Army Housing Association own and manage Morecambe Foyer,
which is a 25 bed space supported housing scheme, around a model of 5 x 5
cluster units. Earlier this year, funding has been provided by both the City




4.38

4.39

4.40

4.41

4.42

Page 55

Council and County Council to convert one of the cluster units into crisis
accommodation, as there was no crisis provision for young people in the
Morecambe area, beyond placements in Bed and Breakfast accommodation.
This is a pilot project at present funded through SP, but if the crisis provision
was to continue in the longer term, alternative funding will need to be
identified. )

The Councit is extremely fortunate to have a robust framework in place for
young people, and this is a result of the solid partnerships that are currently in
place, the quality and sound management provided by accommodation
providers and the funding provided through the Supporting People
Programme have all contributed to its success.

Domestic Abuse

Those experiencing domestic abuse have access to a number of services in
this District. This includes support and outreach services offered by
organisations like Lancaster and District Women'’s Aid. The Council, through
Adactus Housing Association, have two “safe house” units of dispersed family
accommodation within the District, and, in 2011, Lancashire County Council
commissioned a Refuge for the District, which will be delivered by East
Lancashire Women's Refuge Association, a subsidiary of Calico Housing
Group and will open in April 2013. This has been a most welcome addition to
the services offered to those experiencing domestic violence, as the District
has been without a Refuge for several years, and has needed to rely on other
Districts to meet this need, in instances where dispersed accommodation is
not available or suitable, and also bridges the gap in provision to assist single
females. Whilst acknowledging that men also experience domestic violence,
previous research and consultation undertaken last year as part of the work
undertaken to develop Commissioning Plans, show that the numbers of
presentations are too low to merit any specific service being commissioned for
this group.

Lancaster District Local Strategic Partnership have set aside funding to
enhance the current Independent Domestic Violence Adviser (IDVA) service,
which provides high risk victims of domestic abuse with support for
themselves and their families in addition to support through the criminal
justice system. The IDVA currently operates five days a week, but with this
additional funding the service will be extended to 7 days for a trial period of 2
years, so that there is additional support available to victims. Funding is being
sought to stabilise the IDVA service and is also being explored around the
provision of a children’s |IDVA service.

The Council currently funds a sanctuary scheme, which improves the safety
and security of a victim's property so that they can remain in their own home
should they chose to.

There are strategic processes in place to manage the risk posed to individuals
of domestic violence through the MARAC (Multi Agency Risk Assessment
Conference) which is attended by a number of agencies, statutory and
voluntary. The MARAC ensures that the relevant processes and support is



4.43

4.44

4.45

4.46

4.47

4.48

Page 56

put in place to effectively manage the risk to victims who are likely to be “high
risk” (those at serious risk of being killed or seriously hurt, which is
approximately 10% of domestic violence victims).

Substance/Alcohol Misuse

Services that are offered to people with a history of substance misuse are
commissioned through Lancashire Drug and Alcohol Team. As well as a
range of treatment and rehabilitation services, Inward House Projects provide
a supported housing scheme in Lancaster, for individuals who have come
through a detox programme and are drug or alcohol free. There are currently
only two services in the whole of Lancashire that are specifically provided for
this group. In addition, through the Disc floating tenancy support contract,
specialist tenancy support is also provided to those with a history of
substance misuse.

LDAT engages with a wide number of partner organisations through their
Joint Commissioning Group, which meets monthly, and is also represented on
the Supporting People Commissioning Board.

One of the barriers identified in relation to people presenting to services, is
how to best meet the needs of those with complex needs or dual diagnosis,
as at the present time, individuals can fall between services and do not
receive the interventions required. Some further work needs to be carried out
around this issue, which may require some joint commissioning in the future.

~ Offenders or those with a history of offending

People with an offending background are often the most difficult to place into
suitable housing, because of the risk they are perceived to pose. Many social
housing providers, including the Council, have specific allocation policies in
place which prevent applicants with unspent convictions being able to access
social housing, generally for a set period of time or until the conviction is
spent. However, all social housing providers should have processes in place
which enable the circumstances of every applicant to be assessed on its own
merits.

The National Probation Service are the lead commissioners for the
commissioning of services for offenders in Lancashire through the Supporting
People Programme, although from a housing perspective, they are not direct
providers of housing outside of the approved premises for offenders, which
are provided for offenders who are either serving community penaities, on bail
awaiting sentence or have been received from prison.

Stonham Housing Association currently own and manage a six bed space
hostel at Hubert Place, Lancaster. The hostel is intended to house those in
need of supported housing who have a background of offending or are
considered to be at risk of offending due to homelessness. Stonham have
acknowledged that the existing project does not lend itself to accommodating
those offenders who are deemed to be medium risk of offending or above.
Furthermore, the scheme has low level staffing, which also impacts on the risk




4.49

4.50

4.51

4.52

Page 57

assessment processes in place when accessing this scheme. There is a gap
in provision for offenders who are deemed to be medium or high risk of
offending which creates a real problem. This is partly met through the funding
provided to resource an intensive floating support service to MAPPA (Multi
Agency Public Protection Arrangements), but sourcing appropriate
accommodation continues to be very challenging.

Further funding has been provided through CRISIS to provide support to
offenders who are on Supervision Orders and have a local connection to
either Lancaster or Wyre Districts. The scheme is to work with offenders who
are motivated to change and they are assisted to secure private rented
accommodation and housing related support for up to three months. Due to
the success of this scheme, the funding has been provided up to February
2013. ' :

Gypsies and Travellers

The 2007 Lancashire Sub-Regional Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation and
Related Services Assessment provided the Council with an assessment of
accommodation need and pitch requirements at an immediate local level. This
evidence aiso fed into the North West Plan Partial Review of accommodation
for Gypsies and Travellers and Travelling Show people. Although this latter
work was not issued due the revocation of spatial strategies, it specified the
number of pitches / plots required for each local planning authority.

The Council has a statutory duty to assess the accommodation needs of
Gypsies and Travellers as part of the wider assessment of housing needs.
There are currently a number of privately run sites providing accommaodation
for gypsy and travellers. An assessment carried out in 2011 showed that
through private provision there are 129 permanent pitches, and 2 transit |
pitches. A further 19 social rented pitches are provided by Lancashire County
Council at the Mellishaw Park site, which is currently managed by the Council.
The new national planning policy for traveller sites requires local planning
authorities to make their own assessment of need for the purposes of
planning; to work collaboratively; and to develop fair and effective strategies
to meet need through the identification of land for sites. The national policy
requirements will be progressed through an assessment of the
accommodation needs of gypsies and travellers, and of travelling _
showpeople, engagement with these communities, and the land allocations
process for the emerging Local Plan. The Local Plan will also include a criteria
based development management policy for proposals for establishing Gypsy

~ and Traveller and Travelling Showpeople sites.

The target groups provided for within the existing floating tenancy support
contract include gypsies and travellers. Evidence of referrals by client group
show that there has been very low take up of this service, despite the .
perceived size of the travelling community within the District, and the barriers
that can exist in this group accessing mainstream services. There needs to
be further work around this to ensure that gypsies and travellers can access
this service if they need to.



453

454 .

4.55

4.56

4.57

4.58

Page 58

In March 2012, the Government published a new Planning Policy for Traveller
Sites, which sets out the framework for assessing the needs of the GRT
community in each District, collaborative working to develop fair and effective
strategies to meet need through suitable site provision, to promote more
private traveller site provision, and to reduce the number of unauthorised
developments and encampments and protecting the Green Belt.

This Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan will need to have regard to
the Planning Policy document by:-

¢ Considering and refreshing the current evidence around need.

e ldentifying suitable deliverable sites as part of the Local Plan to provide
five years worth of sites, and developable sites over a longer period.

» Engagement with the travelling community to inform land allocations and
site provision. :

s Investigate the options around who is best placed to provide traveller sites
in the District.

To assist with this process, an established group of practitioners, chaired by
Lancashire County Council, meets quarterly to look at both the strategic and
operational issues around the services provided to gypsies and traveliers.
Continued joint working with these partner organisations and the GRT
community will assist the Council in being able to plan appropriately to
meeting the needs of this group. The council is also commissioning some
further engagement work with the GRT community in order to identify the
most appropriate options.

BME communities

The 2001 census confirms that less than 2% of the population of the District is
made up of Black and Minority Ethnic households (BME). However, this
census data does not capture the impact of the EU accession regulations and
the in-migration that has taken place since the enlargement of the European
Union in 2004, and subsequently in 2007. Although anecdotally there is
evidence that there are well established groups of Eastern Europeans living
permanently within the District, largely Polish, the new census data will assist
us to properly identifying these groups.

The Housing Needs Survey 2011 found that there were higher levels of
overcrowding within the BME communities than elsewhere, and that just
under 10% of BME households had a member with a disability. Affordability
was cited as the main reason for the BME community being unable to move
into suitable accommodation due to the lack of affordable rented housing, and
73% said they were unable to buy a property. The Housing Needs Survey
recommends that there is adequate provision of larger units of
accommodation for BME communities given the findings.

Through this Action Plan period, the Council will need to properly identify the
ethnic make-up of this District from the new census data, and may need
undertake some further engagement work to ensure that the needs and




4.59

4.60

4.61

Page 59

requirements of the BME communities are properly captured having regard to
the Housing Needs Survey findings, when considering future housing
provision of both market and affordable housing.

Qlder people

During the period 2008 to 2033, the 65 years plus age group is forecast to
grow by 61.8%, with a 138% increase in the 86 years plus age group. This
ageing population poses a significant challenge as these households are
more likely to have a need for support services, adaptations or specialist
accommodation. This means that there needs to be sufficient supply of new
specialist and adaptable general needs accommodation as well as ensuring
that support and other needs are being met to enable older people to enjoy a
good quality of life

The Housing Needs Survey 2011 reports that the future needs of older peaple
will be best met through sheltered housing or independent accommodation
with visiting support, and by 2014, the District needs will be circa 2,123 units.
Furthermore, the Survey identified that across the social housing sector, there
are around 500 properties that are under-occupied by two bedrooms or more,
and that the Council would need to develop a strategy to identify the
aspirations of existing tenants. Whilst acknowledging this, there could well be
other drivers around this given the proposed welfare reforms and cuts to
housing benefit, although these will not directly apply to those over
pensionable age. However, the Housing Needs Survey strongly suggests that
older people, whether occupying market or affordable housing, need to be
provided with a good housing offer as an incentive to moving which is not
readily available at present, which is why the survey recommends that 60% of
new market housing provision is one and two bedroom units, and 50% in
respect of affordable housing. Social housing providers may also need to
develop incentive schemes to support older people to move into smaller, more
suitable accommodation, to meet and plan for their future needs. Great
Places Housing Group is already planning for this, and piloted an incentive
scheme providing additional support to a targeted group of households
occupying family housing, which was successful and may be rolled ouit.

In order to plan for future projected need, there needs to be adequate
provision of home-based support services and adaptations for older people
living across tenures, borne out by the Housing Needs Survey. This also fits
in with Lancashire County Council’'s plan to implement changes to the
targeting of supporting people funding for older people, which is currently
wholly directed towards sheltered housing tenants. Future plans include
providing visiting support to all tenures where it is feasible to do so. The
proposed model would mean that as part of the letting of sheltered housing
vacancies, all new tenants would be assessed before automatically qualifying
for a service funded through Supporting People, and for those who do not
qualify or need a service, this will create some capacity to deliver services to
other neighbouring residents, who could be general needs tenants, private
sector tenants or owner-occupiers. This would inevitably mean a change in
the way services are currently delivered by existing service providers,
including the council. '



4.62

4.63

4.64

4.65

4.66

Page 60

One of the fundamental pre-requisites to meeting the needs of older people is
to undertake a detailed analysis of existing sheltered housing provision across
the District, to take account of the total current provision, the standards and
facilities available and demand for sheltered housing. Work has already
begun around this through the North Locality Specialist Housing for Older
People Group (known as SHOP) — a group of providers and commissioners,
and a Lancashire wide Asset Survey collating ali details of existing sheltered
housing provision has been completed, which provides a wide range of
information including scheme facilities, local amenities, door entry systems
and access arrangements, voids information and rents/service charges. This
data will inform future action planning, and, where applicable, may influence
decisions around any existing schemes that need to be re-modelled or in fact
de-commissioned.

Another area of work to be covered by the SHOP is the provision of extra care
sheltered housing, as there are a number of different models that currently
operate across the County. There needs to be a greater understanding of the
degree of need required given that there is much less provision than in many
other areas and a more consistent approach taken to the planning,
commissioning and procurement of extra care housing in the future.

In this District, there are two Council owned extra care sheltered housing
schemes, at Beck View, Lancaster, and Parkside Court, Morecambe, and a
scheme at Millrace Court, Lancaster, which belongs to Places for People.
Some years ago, a partnership/steering group was formed between the City
and the County Council to designate two existing sheltered housing schemes
as "extra care” provision, whereby up to a third of dwellings becoming vacant
are allocated to the relevant Adult Care Team within Lancashire County
Council. That team collates and prioritises a list of service users who reqguire
a care package of 10 hours care or more, and who would nominate suitable
applicants upon being notified of a vacancy. Lancashire County Council fund
a dedicated care team that are based at each extra care scheme which offers
some economies of scale and consistency in relation {o the care offered. The
partnership was formed around a common desire to reduce the number of
older people that were placed into residential care and by offering existing
tenants a more desirable alternative to prevent this. The scheme was
subsequently rolled out to Millrace Court, Mainway, Lancaster, which
extended the provision across three geographical locations within the District.

There was a further plan to provide a new extra care provision at Moor Platt,
Caton, a former residential care home. This plan was based around a market
housing scheme delivering a complement of affordable housing (both rented
and shared ownership) with on-site extra care provision, but due to the
change in housing market conditions, the scheme stalled, and a decision was
taken not to commission this scheme. Lancashire County Council now plans
to sell the site.

The Abbeyfield Silverdale and District Society obtained planning permission to
develop 14 units of retirement housing (bungalows and apartments} at Cove
Orchard, Silverdale, situated in the grounds of Cove House, a residential care




467

4.68

Page 61

establishment run by Abbeyfield. Given the scheme’s imminent proximity to
Cove House, the Abbeyfield Society are able to directly provide a care
package to residents at Cove Orchard. Although not obligated to provide ‘
them, Abbeyfield have decided to provide two rented units within the scheme,
without any financial support or grant in place, in recognition that there will be
village residents that are in genuine need but who are not able to purchase
properties. There will be eligibility and local connection criteria applied to all
properties.

The Housing Needs Survey findings support the need for 362 extra care units
across tenures, coming from both existing households and those intending to
move into the District. Both the City and County Council will need to
examine carefully the current and future provision of extra care
accommodation, as well as the most appropriate models, which can only be
brought about through effective collaborating working with other relevant
organisations, both in developing and delivering an appropriate Oider
People’s Housing Strategy. In recognition of the detailed work that will be
required around this, it will be necessary to establish an Older Peoples Task
Group, with a number of key stakeholders to develop and deliver the
Lancaster District Older People’s Housing Strategy early in the Housing
Strategy and Housing Action Plan period.

Student housing

In recent years, Lancaster University has expanded its own provision of on-
campus student housing, to meet the current and future demand for student
accommodation. More recently, there has been an increase in private sector
student housing in the City Centre, to meet the demand. The Council’s
position is that planning applications to provide or convert buildings into
student housing are generally supported so long as the proposed
development is of a suitable layout and is located in a sustainable location if
off-campus. Lancaster University commissioned some research in 2011 to
examine and measure the need for student housing in the District, and the
findings could inform future planning policy. The Council has generally
supported additional units of student housing because of the increasing
number of traditional family housing in the Lancaster south area which is
being used for the purposes of accommodating students. The impact of this
has been a reduction in the availability of private sector rented '
accommodation and market housing for sale and it is hoped that additional
student housing provision will help to balance housing markets and could
create some capacity in the longer term. However, from a planning policy
perspective, and in order to deliver the annual housing requirement of 400
dwellings per year, student housing development should not take priority over
sites that could otherwise provide residential housing that are identified in the
Local Plan as such.



4.69

4.70

4.71

5.0

5.1

Page 62

Rural communities

The Parish Partnerships Project will be a long term project starting in
December 2012. The intention is to establish working groups on a parish
locality basis with representatives drawn from the parish council, members of
the local community who can provide perspectives on housing need, and
organisations responsible for housing delivery such as registered providers
and residential developers. It is likely that the project will focus on settlements
identified by Core Strategy Policy SC3; settlements with fewer local services
that have been identified in the emerging Local Plan (Policy OPP5) as
settlements with need for additional residential development; and any other
settlements where there is evidence of local housing need.

The intention is for the working groups to work together to identify sites that
can help address local housing need and the shortfall in housing delivery in
rural settlements. The local housing need will be informed by the 2011
Housing Needs Survey as well other local evidence around housing need
where this is available. Lancaster City Council will provide the secretariat
support for each working group that will draw in officer support and expertise
on a case by case basis. Each working group will need to operate in a way
that best responds to the local circumstances.

Former Armed Forces personnel

Lancaster City Council recognises that serving members of the armed forces
may require housing upon discharge, and evidence suggests that this group
could be at more risk of homelessness for a number of reasons, including
suffering from post traumatic stress disorder. As part of the work undertaken
to develop a Lancaster District Tenancy Strategy, which was approved in
January 2013, social housing providers are requested to have regard to the
needs of armed forces personnel when framing their allocation policies to
ensure that this group is not disadvantaged in relation to local connection
criteria that may be applied. The HCA have already determined that armed
forces personnel should be given preference for schemes such as Homebuy.
Lancaster district is fortunate to have designated accommodation for former
armed forces personnel, which is managed by the Guinness Partnership at
Westfield Memorial Village, with a strict requirement that applicants must
either be serving or previously serving members of HM forces.

Reviewing the Housing Strateqy and Housing Action Plan

The Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan 2012 —- 2017 wili be reviewed
annually and a formal mid term review will be undertaken, which will include
key stakeholders, and will be reported formally to members.




Page 63

Lancaster District Housing Action Plan 2012-2017



Page 64

juawabeuep

Juswdopreg sabe||ia 1099l014 sdiysisuped
juea) Adlod ul Asaiep ysied ayj dn 1a@s pue $aljunwuiwiod
$80IN0%3l 102 BuisnoH Buisnoy jedns ul Buisnoy jo Juawidolaasp ay)
Bunsixy |un Bulobup | pue Buluueld poddns o] | 03 uonejal ul Aoijod abejjia Asy msiaey
a|geAsIyoe pue sainijod malasal pue suolIpuod
weaj a|gejusLs|dLui 19yiew Buisnoy ul sabueyd Aue
sa0IN0sal ABejens aie s)ebiel | jo bl ayy u Apnis Appqelpn Buisnoy
Bunysix3 paiinbal sy BuisnoH pue sapljod | d|depioly Sy} Wolj elep syl ysayoy
wea | sbuiput} As)
uswabeuepy yim ploooe
swidoasq $32I1S pue Aanap
jues | sadA; Buijsmp Buisnoy ajgeploye pue jaxlew
s92.nosal Absjens ‘ainua) aininy Buiuiueisp usym Asning
Bunsixg Bulobup Buisnoy BuisnoH spaaN BuisnoH Jo Junoose aye |
ed
SOIJIUNLIWOYD suons|duwiod
_ pue BuisnoH Buljamp
$80IN0Sal £10Z 924 - 182140 a|qeploye ads spaoN Buisnoy
Bunsix3 pajs|dwon Buluue|d 09 @AYy Buospy sy ydope pue s1sjdwo)
ed
102 suoljedwoo sQdq uswabeue|y
$82IN0sal lagwaos(q | wea] Aolod Buijjeomp JusdoAd(Q pUB SUOIIEDO|Y PUET
Bunsix3 [un BuiobuQ Buiuue;d 00% Buiasiyoy ue|d |e207 ayj idope pue aja|dwo)
suoiesfjdwj uonsjdwos
92.1n0S9y | Joj ajesasaw] peaq sawooInQ uonoy

ONISNOH 40 ALNVND LHOR 3HL JAIIHOV | JN3IHL

£102-210Z NV1d NOLLOV ONISNOH LOIY1SIQ H31SVONVYT IHL ONIRMIAINTA




Page 65

s12bie)

122140 Buisnoy Buisnoy
$921n0sal Buiobuo ABajens 2|qeploye a|geploye apiaoid 0} SISpIA0LH
Bunsix3 - 110z Aewy Buisnoy Jo8W 0 palelsibay Aq epew spig poddng
‘sanuond
ajelodiod Jsyjo
pue Absjells
jesodsip
S [1I0UN0YD
3y} 50 0|
ul palapIsSuod aq
pINoMm siy} 1ng
‘UOIJBIAPISUOD
158q UBL) SS9
1e pallajsuel)
s| puej § 1disoal dnoigo
|eydeosjesse Auadoig sjebie)
punsixs jwesaj Buisnoy Buisnoy sjgepioye
ue Jo ssoj BuioBuo - Abarens a|geplioye Jo Alenlop 2y} 1o} S8)IS paumo
e ulynsai Aepy | |10z Aseniged puisnoH IECNE] [I2UNOYD JO BsN JBPISUO3 pue Ajuap|
suonebiqo
Buiuued
ybnouyy
uolsiaoid
Buisnoy
ajqeploye
asiuIxew
SSIIUNLWIWIOYD 0} Buisnoy
. pue BuisnoH a|geploye
$92/N0S3l ‘Bulobuo - 18210 10} spjoysaiu} Buisnoy ajqep.ioye Buinsiyoe
Buisixg pue ¢L02 Buluue|d ysligeis3 0} yoeoudde pajepdn ay) Juswa|duw|




Page 66

£10¢/210¢ VNG Aousoiye saweyosg
$801N0s3l Jeah BuisnoH ABisus Buisnoy passysys g Aobaje) uo
Bunsix3 [elsueuly pug pue yjesy asealouj | s|oued Ad Jo uonejuswaldwi 8yl 10|id
SIBpIAOId

BuisnoH | syjeap ss80x8 jeaq ussly) e

|e100s [EUOSESS Buipunj poy e

/siapinold | onpay/Apanod SWDYDS SOLIOH WIBpp e
ABisug Elh . -:Buipnpoul
J/Aousby | aonpaypo0)s 30038 Buisnoy ||e jo Asustoije
$20iN0sal Buicbuo | juswanoiduw Buljjemp ABiaua ay) asesloul 0} Buipuny
Bunsix3 | - L 1L0Z 1290120 SWOH panosdul) a|qe|ieAR UMOP MeIp JO Ajjusap)

)O0IS
Buisnoy [1punoo Bujjapouw-ay e
‘03e Aoijod H001s

sl AQ pauuiojul SOOINDS Buisnoy j1ounoo Buinoidw| e
a( pjnom adoas |eloueul 4 ajge|ieae -:10}
Jayuny Auy JO0INIRS $92IN0S3l apiysA e se syuswsbuele Buidueuly
‘Alleijul saalesal BuisnoH |eydeo J|9s Mmau sy H 8yl Ag pejussaid
Bunsixe Jo asn paaibe aq o] pue yjesH ay} esealou| saljiunuoddo ay) plemio) axe|

salsyos
‘palinbal aq uoijesausbal
Aew sjeaocidde SETNIETe) saijuoud uoneisusbal
Jayny 0] 8|qejleAe payiuspl 8aiy) s jouisIq au}
awios — Buipuny wea | $821N0Ss8) punole sIapinold palalsibay Jo/pue
YOH/S821n0s8l FSETNIET jendes sladolana] ypm diysiauped ug yiom
Bunsixg BuicBuQ pue Aojjod ay) eseatou} | pue sanunuoddo Buipun) Aue alojdx3
suonealjduij uonajdwod

921N0S9Yy | 10O} B[EISOWI | pea sawoan0 uoljoy

ONISNOH 40 ALITVYND 1HOIY 3HL ONIAIIHOV 2 JW3HL




Page 67

jswabeuey

Aanigp Joy

wawdojgasgd uoisirold | sjobiey aininy Bumes jo Ajiqises) sy}
Jues | Buisnoy | oebisanul pue suopenobsu Buluue|d
$92IN0sal ABsjeng | spasu jenads 1O Led Se uoiEpPOWIWIOdJ. Spasu
Bunsixg Buiobup BuisnoyH | pasealou [e1nads }jing asodind Jo} ajenjoban
Auaaod
|en) aonpal
Juawabeuey /SuoISsIWe
wawdosas(g | uogqied aonpal uejd 207 8y} Jo uondope sy}
Jwes| Aood | jeoueuuopad | Buimojio) ‘Auigela o yoslgns ‘sbuljjemp
§92JN0S3l yL0Z BuisnoH ABisus M3U UO ¥ |9AST 9P0Y) 0} S|LWIoH
Bunsix3 taquianoN | pue Bujuueid 9sealouy| 2|geuieISnS 10} 8pos) ay} aseslou|
Juawasbeuey
1 wswdojsasg o018
ugld | /wea] Adijod | Buisnoy ejqeid piepuels
s921nosal | 207 ybnoiy)l BuisnoH | epe/a|gissaooe | SaLUoy swnaj| 1939w 1By} suona|duwiod
Bunsixg pue BulobugQ | pue Buluue|d QIO | - BuIsnoy Jo Jaqunu ay} 9sesalou|
‘Buliopuow
9S0|2 10} pesu
Yiim ‘saaunosal
Bunsixa
ybnoly} s1IBYO Buibieyo xe} [Iouno) e
‘1ouno) 19Bpng (spung Ajunwiwio)
0} J08lgns dHY ybnoiyy Buipuny 10 pig
150d 192140 sjyeuayg | 9sn 0} pauinial ABarens sapadold
sawoH Adwg PUE SNUSASY sajpadoid Aydwig ue Buidojeasg e
pajesipap jwea| Adws | uonoe JusWS2IoUS sleudolddy e
B IO} Sd0IN0sal sSplemuo Aaneq Jo Jaquinu -Ag 101810 Y1 UIyIMm
[euonippy | pue zioz Anr pue Aoljod Joybiy v | sawoy Aidws Jo Jsguinu sy} 8onpay




Page 68

UOIEPOWILLIODOE
10109s ayeaud
pabeuew |Bm pue

labeueyy LOIEPOLLILIODO. Aanep

suondo Aeiodwia) 10 |epouwi ajeudoidde ue Ajjuspl

S92In0sal BuisnoH 10 Aljigejieae | pue sauped Jojoas AlgjunjoA e ybnoiy)

Bunsixg | 10z IBswuwng |edouud asealou| Aouabe sbumsy |eoos e 8jeai)
painoss .

Buipuny anusaal Jsuped juswdojaasp
dS/peinaes Jobeue)y a|qeyns e Buikjusp] e
Buipuny suondo AaAljap 1o} japoll

epded yoH/eus ¥102 Buisnoy ‘dnoib pue a)is a|geyns e buiAyyuap| e
PaUMO |IoUNoD lagquaoeq jediouud sIyj Jo} uoisiaold -:AqQ Buipunj anusaai 0}
e alinbal Aew [1un a0 | Buisnoy papoddns | 108lgns ‘Gz J9A0 sployasnoy ssajawioy
1ng $890In0s8l Buiobuo pue ABajens | pue sisUD a|qeuns a|buisysiadas|s ybnol Joj uoisiacid

Bunsixg | zZL0Z 1ewwing BuisnoH Jo uojsinoid [91SOY HUN | UB JBASp pue ue|d
uea |
ABaeng sdnoib
BuisnoH olj108ds Jo spasu ‘Bulepow
/114071 | ainny sy Bunesw -9l Jofpue spasu alnjnjuoclsirold
fuiobuo /jIounod) o} ABoyens | ui sdeb Aypuepi pue ssau||] [elusin/A
$82IN0sal -2102 Auno) e Jusua|dwi UlIM S18SN-82IAI8S 104 UOISIACH
Bunsixg Jaquiaydag | anyseouen pue jdopy Buisnoy Bunsixe mainai pue depy
SI9PIAOI
paiasibey | Buisnoy isijeroads 199 8yl ybnoly) seioueaeA
/lounos | Jo asn jsaq ayeuw ||E SSILISAPE [|IM SplO|pue| [elo0s ||e
$901N0sal . Ao pue ssaualeme | jey} aaibe pue Buisnoy |enos paidepe
Bunsix3 ¥L0Z/€10Z | Je)seoue] asealou| 10 191s16ai e Buidojaaap J1episuo)
suonest|du uonajdwos
921n0S9Yy | 10} d|BISdBWI]] pean SawovN0 uoloy

SdNOYD ITEVHINTNA ANV SIILINNWINOD 40 SA33IN FHL ONILITN € NTHL




Page 69

{IoUN0D

Alunog Ajlunwwos
Buipuny "soue 149 8y} o}
YOH/S92IN0s8l /liounoD | sayond ajgey)ns jo yied ueaeled
[1ounod AyJuno)d A0 | iequinu syenbape meysljspy enoidw pue apelbdn
aliyseoue] | pesalbesqo) | J3)sBOUET ue apiaoad o] 0] saniunpoddo Buipuny Aue si0|dx3
ANUNWIWOD | HD Aaniiap Jo sjapow ajgissod
wea | ay} 1oy seyoyd jo | dojaasp pue uoisiacid yoyd pasesioul
$921n0sal BuiobBuo pue ABsleng | Jegqwnu syenbape Buipiebal sepuNuWod | 4O
Bunsixg | ¢Log Aenuer BuisnoH ue spinoid 0] | 2yl yum suom Juswsbebus axeuspun
uoneqold _
J1ebeuep
j@i1soy suoido
Jadeasis ybnol BuisnoH
mau ybnouy jedipunud "$19pUBYO
18w aq pINoo Jik-]}iTg) Buipuayo jo ysu 1o} uoisinoud Buisnoy papoddns
pue saainosal 102 ABajeng | pue ssaussaj@woy pue sisuo ay) Bularoidwi/Buiseassut
Bunsix3 laquiaosed BuisnoH aonpsy 10} suondo sjebijsenu|
jobeuepy |  2o1/u9s SSO|LLUEDS
suondo onsijoy e sapinoud
BuisnoH pue saoeds
lediound paq SSIUIXEW
[3VIHO 0} ‘AQ 0 VMO PUB YHM TS YPIM
$92iNno0sal ABajeng | swiola o} Ajejes jo sbinjay Ja)seoue] ay} 1o} sassa00.id
Bunsix3 €107 UoJe BuisnoH | aoejd e apiaoid 0] Aemyled pue |elael ysigels3
isbeuepy
suondo "suoneo)du "sBuiaes analyoe o) pssu
fuisnoH buipuny Jusoal 240W 8y} pue ‘syep 01 sAejep
suonesduy ledioud JapIM 19PISU0D sy} uanlb panaiyoe aq Ajleansijeal
1ebpng 48 82140 pue Buisnoy UEd 30IAJSS MBU B JSYJoYM apIaap
s [lounoD AJuno) ABareng | papoddns sjgeuns pue swayos Aoueubaid abeusasy
allyseoue €102 |udy BuisnoH 210W 8pIroId 3} JO BUIUCISSIWILLIOD B} MBIASY




Page 70

[Iounon) Ajunon) - 2102 ABajeng | sBuines Aiessaoau | s}ebpnq jouysiq 0} sebueys pasodoid
alyseoue l|sgquiaosa( BuisnoH Sy} oew o} a1 Jo sucnedidwl ay} ispIsuo?)
‘LLog
20140 | 10y WsSI|e207 38U} Jo ‘ABajeng Aoueus] Jousi( Jejseoue
ABslens | spuswalinbal |eba) e dojaasp 03 sailoyine anyseoue]
paisidwo) Z10Z 22Q BuisnoH | ay} yum Aldwod o] Ullm Ylomawelj peolq e aa1by
suonejdepe
1abeuep uo aouepinb sBuljjemp
$92JN0sal BuisnoH /sainpanoid [19UNOY 0] suoleidepe Jo} AsIjod
Busixg | zLOZ 1990100 ledioung | pue Aojjod pauieq suoneldepy BuisnoH sy} Juswsaijdw)
uoIsIaoid
Jayjeam p|od
pue Buleys ejep
labeuep alow ‘siades|s
Buipuny suondo ybBnou Buipodas
70(0/S821N0s3l 2102 BuisnoH loj syjuswsbuele Aoljod pue Abajeng
Bunsix3 laquiasa( |ediould Jepeg | N0 WBIN puooag oN, a3 uswa|dw)
uotsiaord
Buisnoy aied eJjxo Buuapisuo) e
J19UNOY Buisnoy ajgepioye pue
ammbsm 0} lo)iell JO co_#masooo-_mﬁc:
Joalgns Buisnoy soouejswnoJo | Buonpai jo sAem Bunebyseau] e
[}oUNOD palayays pue spasu duiliea suondo aininy pue Ayjigeyns
jo Bulepowai 199w yoiym ajdoad | ‘uoisirosd Buisnoy Bunsixe ey e
10} uoisiaold 1201 | 19p|o Jo} uoisiaoud - 9pNoUl ||IM Yo1ym
fseoinosal | “Buiobuo pue AGojeng | Buisnoy sjenbape ABojelyg BuisnoH s,uosiad J19p|0
Bunsixg | 10z Aenige BuisnoH | sl aleyi ainsua 0] | ue dojaasp pue dnoig) ysejf e dn jag
‘sjuswalinbal
pue spasu Buisnoy oyoads Auspl
Wesa| | seijunwwo? 3INg 0] SaIUNWLWOY JINgG Yyum papsasu
s92Inosal’ €10z 224 ABsjeng | Jo spesu Buisnoy | st yiom juswabebua seaypny §i 19pISUOD
Bunsixg —-¢L0z ge4 BuisnoH ayj eindes o] | pue Bjep SNsuan) a8yl JO JUN0JJE a)e




Page 71

palinbal

aq Aew sainsesuw
[EUCHIPPE JEYM
UILLISIBP pUE
pabejueapesip ale

182140 sdnoub Jejnoiped ue|d uonoy BuisnoH pue
ZL0Z Abajeng Aue Jayleym | AbBajenig BuisnoH ayj uo juswissasse
paje|dwo) SETS[VIETNe] N BuisnoH uleuaase o] 1edwl Ajlienbs ue axeuapun
1abeuey Y
sBuige] | wsieoo@ouepinb
$80IN0Sal Buiobuo pue paseg 1O 9p02 MdU a8y} aWBYIS UCIIeIo|Y
Bunsixg €10z uale 8ol0yD | JO JUNoIJE 9Ye} O S |1oUN07) By} JO MBIASI B S)epapun
S82IAIBS papuny
ds Jo Japiaoid
B SE [I2UNno9)
ApD Jeiseouen
uodn suones|duwi ‘sBuiaes 1abpnq
aUoS aq ds aininy Jo 1oedwi ay) pue swwelboid
pinos 186png 4S Buiobuo Aol | o|geondde sisym

gjdoad Buioddng sy} ybnoiuy




Consultation



Page 73

Consultation on the Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan 2012-2017

7.1 Key stakeholders have been consulted on the Draft Housing Strategy and Housing
Action Plan as many other organisations will be critical to its delivery. These include
the Homelessness Forum (representatives from Health, Adult Social Care, Probation
Service, Supporting People Team, Registered Providers of Social Housing ~ general
needs and supported housing providers, Help Direct, Lancaster District Homeless
Action Service, Lancaster and District Women’s Aid, YMCA and Citizens Advice
Bureau), and Council officers from both the Regeneration and Planning Service,
Health and Housing Service and Housing Benefits. The document has also been
cascaded to the Affordable Warmth Steering Group, the Health and Wellbeing
Partnership, the Mental Health and Housing Forum and the Lancashire Drug and
Alcohol Team’s Joint Commissioning Group. A public consultation event also took
place at Asda, Lancaster, on Sunday 7" October, with officer and member
representation.

7.2 A consultation event took place on the 3™ July at the Storey Institute, with 33
delegates from the Homelessness Forum attending. The format of the event
comprised of a detailed presentation, covering the content of the document as well
as a housing strategy monopoly game, whereby delegates were asked to allocate
houses and hotels against a number of themes statements for each section of the
Draft Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan.  The results of the consultation
event are summarised on the next page.



‘AjBuoss jsow poaibesipjueriodiu]
jsesj mEmn 739 PUE AJBUOLIS JSOW paaJbeueLIod] 150t bUloq 3 UM jUelUojE)s Jod Sj5j0y PUE SOSNOY JO S90S AEINWNDG U0 paseq bupjuey
mznmmw_ 2102-210Z ue|d uonoy BuisnoH pue ABajeng BuisnoH sy) Uo JUSAT uoleNSUOY €71




7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

Page 75

Conclusions from consultation results.

Quantity - The results demonstrate that there is a real appetite amongst
stakeholders for the Council to do more work around bringing empty homes back
into use. This has often been an area that both officers and elected members are
very passionate about, but resources to do more strategic and proactive work
around empty homes has been very limited historically. In reality targeting empty
homes alone will not deliver a sufficient number of housing units, but can certainly
be combined and can compiement hew housing completions. It was pleasing to
see that stakeholders support the work we are doing around securing on site
affordable housing and they do not see that as a deterrent in bringing forward
market housing. ‘

Quality- The results suggest that promoting sustainable development, tackling
climate change and environmental issues are a very important factor and that
opportunities to do this through new build housing provision should be a priority for
the City Council. Notwithstanding this, in terms of allocating resources,
stakeholders did not agree that affordable warmth should not necessarily take
priority-over bringing empty properties back into use.

People- The results show that stakeholders believe that the Council should seek to
meet the housing needs of a wide range of the community rather than targeting or
focussing on any particular group. The Housing Needs Survey suggests that new
housing provision should take account of the ageing population and future housing
provision should include more smaller units of market housing, but the
recommendations for affordable housing suggest there should be an even mix of
units, which largely concurs with these findings. VWhat is most surprising is that
there was little support for the Council commissioning a new service for rough
sleepers, but in the context of this leading to a closure of another service,
stakeholders might have been nervous about supporting this without being
provided with detailed proposals which set out which vulnerable group could
potentially be affected by any reduction in existing services.



Comments on the Draft Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Page 77

Comments on the draft document

A number of comments were received about the content of the document as
follows:-

Margaret Moore, Community Engagement, Lancaster City Council — requested that
the section relating to Domestic Violence in paragraph 4.40 be amended in relation
to the bid made to secure DAPHNE Il European funding for a children’s IDVA,
which was unsuccessful.

Response — document updated accordingly and reference to the funding bid
was removed. :

Helene Cooper, Community Safety & Justice Coordinator, Lancashire County
Council — requested amendment to paragraphs 4.39 — 4.42 to accurately reflect
the funding of the IDVA service and the description of the MARAC.

Response — paragraphs amended as suggested.

Chris Hanna, Principal Housing Manager, Lancaster City Council — requested very
minor amendments to the text within the detailed actions which the Health and
Housing Service are included as the lead organisation.

Response — amended accordingly.

Planning Policy Cabinet Liaison Group - requested 2 clarifications:- the Housing
Needs Survey findings referred to in the report around demographic change and -
population growth, in the light of new census data being received, and whether the
Housing Needs Survey accurately reflects need, and reference to Code Level 4
being a requirement for all new dwellings from January 2013, and that there needs
to be a policy and action around this.

Responses

The planning policy team discussed with David Couttie Associates the

impact of the new census information in comparison to population :
predictions. The consuftants confirmed that the Housing Needs Survey uses
household numbers not population numbers to assess housing need. This
information was up to date in terms of Lancaster’s housing numbers as the
information used was from council tax and not the 2001 census. In their
experience, the difference the census data would make, when released,

would be minute.

The Housing Strategy and Housing Action Plan has been amended and now
states that Code Level 4 will not be implemented before the adoption of the
Local Plan, and a new action has been included as requested.



Page 78

Equality Impact Assessment



Page 79

Z L 0Z SlusLlunJop ueld (8007 Yeud
010z Apmis Aljigeip BuisnoH aigeployy

110z fomnng spasN BuisnoH | ¢ Jojedipul Siyy Uo siom poddns 0} pesn usaq Sey UoeuIOo)ul

JBUAA UChRULIOUI JBL)0 ‘Yoleasad ‘shaains ‘eleq (e Z

uonewuoju| ‘g

ZL0Z /2qUIBAON 461

8jeq

“(s21unuwuwod
ajym Jood osje pue ‘uoibies ‘uonejusLo [enxas ‘uswubisse-al Jspuas epuss ‘Aljigesip ‘Auoluyie
‘aBy) sdnoib Aioiniels ayy Buipnioul ‘Jiauaq piNoys IOLESIP JSISEJUBT Ul SSIUNWIWOD |[e Jey) padoy s}

JAbajens sy wouy
Wauaq |im oym s|doad
10 sdnoib Jo ajdoad
LieL a3 248 oypA (0 |

‘uoisinodd Buisnoy punoie ylomewely Alojenbal
Juauno sy} pue seplod Buibiews pue Bunsixs ‘sanuoud edag ‘sanuoLd alelodlon s puUnod ey
JO 1UNO0208 Sayel pue sanuoud JUSWISaAUl PasEq-908.]d Jofew P3| YOH 8 JO |{EJoP SU} UO SISNJ0) JaLuny i

a|qeIauINA 1sow au} Buipnjoul AUnwiiod ay Jo sued je 1esw o} Buisnoy jo abuei e Buipiaoid :ajdoad =
"¥ools Bujsnoy Bunsixe pue mau jo Ayjenb sy Buiroidwi :Apeny
ymolb s|qeuleisns Buiasiyoe tAjjuenpy e

-:SUON02S Ulew aaiy} uiyum ‘potiad Jeah oAl B 190
paJinbal suonoe pue senliold Buisnoy sJoLISIP 94} N0 S19S UBld UoNdY Buisnoy pue ABejeng BuisnoH sy |

¢, Abaeng
By} jo sanoaigo/swie
8y} ase yeupa (9 1

3N AcD 19)sESUEB DB DUISY |IBWS

986786 ¥ZSL0 tequunu auoydsieL HOL LY mm_._.w<oz<._ ‘IlBH Um0 | Xog 'O'd '‘82neg
Aolj04 pue uoiersuabay ‘wea] Aoljod BuisnoH pue Butuueld JeoO Abetens BuisnoH ‘Jiepulg Auiey

s|le1ep 10BU09
Jayy pue ABaiens
8y} Joy 4801Q pea (Bl

IXsjuo) L

Li0C - Zl0c¢

ue|d uonoy m:.m:o_._ pue ABajes1g BuisnoH Jou3siq Jalsesue] —Juawssassy A)sioAlq @ Aenby




Page 80

SBIIUNWILIOD) JALY U} Wol sanejuesasdsey

dnolg) Jsuonoeld 19ysael} BUOY ASdAD ay i

(syypusg Buisnoy) sanuaasy pue

BuisnoH pue yyesH ‘Buluue|d pue uonessusbay woly siadlyo |1unod
. 210/, BUQD

YOWA

AN UGCII0Y ISIPOLISIN

PV $,UDWIOAA JoUiSIq pue J8jsedue]

neaing a2IApY SUSZID) SIUeT] YLON

90IAI9S UOIDY SSOJSWOH JoL)SI(] PUE J9]SEJUET

»n ebyoaig dieH

wea | sjdoad Buinoddng

B0IAIBS UoleqoId

dnoug) yse | sajdoad iepjQ JeLLOo) U} JO JagwWsul

ales) [B100G pue YjeeH WwoJ} seanejuassiday

siapInolg palalsificy

- QJOM

palIuap! S19p|oyaXe)s W 8y} "ZL0Z AINF ,§ UO JUBAS UONe}NSUOD
B PUSYE O} PBlIAUL 9i9M pUE Ue|d Uojjay BuisnoH pue Absiensg
BuisnoH 8y} Uo PayNsuoDd Uaaq aAeY siapjoysye]s jo abuel epim v

"2}8 (£3I0M B} Ol Pay

aney ajdoad Jegnoued Bupuasaudsal sdnoib AJunwitios yoiym
Jpasn useq sdnoib snooy aaey "B-a) ¢ ABsjeAS SIUL UO YoM
ay1 wuojul 0y padiey ojdoad jo sdnoib Jusisyip aaey moH
sdnolb Ajlunwuwonysiapjoysyels (a z

$8]1j01d PJEA PUE aIyseoue]

10y uoileasssuon) AbBisu] swoH ‘ejep Auanod |any
uonew.oyuissueld Buiueissilewod pue ejep sjdoad Buipoddng
. eiep Asuaby Juswaaoidwl] sWIoH
£00Z A2AINS UOIPUOD 001G J0103G Slenlld

{ssausss|sIoH)

Jid 'YSSH B@ ‘sjas ejep Buisnoy a168)e.is JUSWUISAOD
710z wawnooqg Buluue|d Aleuswia|ddng yeiq




Page 81

o speet BisnoYy Sy o IUNode

%00} Aeaing speapn Buisnoy syl

‘Buisnoy Joj paljdde aaey

oym asouy] o} pasnoy Huieq asoy
jO slagunu sjeuoiyodoidsip
ugag aney aiayl jey)

150BBns 0} 99UBpPIAS OU SI 49U
‘AlesuoisiH ereuoiodoidsip
aq p|noys pasnoyal

asoy) jo pue Buisnoy 1o}

Aidde oym sdnoub jo afejusdlad
ay) pue pabejueapesip

ysiug %oelg/uesqqlied /Uedilly poelg

puncibyoeq
UBISY JOUI0 JUB USILG-UBISY/UBISY

sseuI) — Ushg-UBISY/UBISY

o

Iysepe|bueg - ysiig-UueISy/uBISY

UBISD{Ed - USNLG-UBISY/UBISY

UeIpu| - Ysiig-ueisy/uelsy

aJe jey) sdnoib suyie Jejnonsed i
u o_.m ale 2184} yuw_y m_rmgw 0) dnolb J1uie sidninus — PaXIN
‘peluelb aaey Asy) adA) Aoueus) s
1BUM pUE 'pBSNOY 3SOY) JO pUe uelsy pue SlUmM — PaXIN
‘sues|dde Buisnoy | jo Anoiuyie r
ay] punoJe 10800 Asy) Blep ay UBDLIY MJB|g pUB S1IUA — POXIIA
Joyuow AueinBai pjnoys siapiaoid M
Buisnoy |epog dnoib swyle ueaggued yoeig pue SiUM — PSXIIN
Aue uo Joedwi anjebsu g aary A
10U pINoyYs ue|d uoidy Buisnoy punoibxoeq ajiym 1ayjo Aue — suum
pue ABsiesig Butsnol syt b (sauoBajed
Usi| — aHUpA SNsuan)
"aoUs|0lA Dsawop Bulousuadxe M aoey
USLU O} 80IAISS JB[IWIS B JOJ PaaU ysnug ‘Ysij uIBYHON
ay} Yoddns ¢} 9|ge|leAe 20usping ‘“USI09g ‘Ysiapn ‘ysiibug — anypa
[200] OU SEM 2J8U} ‘©2|AI9S A :
2y} BujuoissILLIWED Jo awn rapushbsues]
a3yl 1y osnge osawop Buueyns A
UaWOoM 10} SI Yoiym Jousip uap
laiseaue] ay} ul abnjai e o) posu A 19pus9
8y} spoddns ue|d uoiloy BuisnoH USWIOAA
pue ABsieng Buisnoy eyl A~
1oedwl 1oedll — edw
uoneuedxy | ainsun oN | @2anebsN BaAIlISOd

2102 - ZTL0Z ueld :o:o.< BuisnoH pue AbBajesns BuisnoH ayj jo joedw| ¢




Page 82

‘Buisnoy

Buissasoe usym sjuaLedul
Aosues pue [edisAyd Yim ssoyl
1sisse ||m salliadolid poydepe

Jo 13151591 B J0 Uolesld ay|
‘giqissod alaym sawasyss Buisnoy
ajgeploye aunny Uo Buisnoy
spoau |enads Joj Buirenobsu

se [|lem se ‘Jdepe o} Asee ale pue
plepUES SOLUIOY aWwsll| Jeswl jey)
sBugiemp Jo |aAa] Joybiy e spiaold
0} 83888 ue|d uoioy BuisnoH

pue ABejelis BuisnoH syl

Aosusg

levisAud

Aqesia

"alnyny ay; U1 papiacid

a.e sayoyd J9||8AB) JO Jaguunu
JUSIDNS B 8INSUa 0] JuUawnoop
ZLOZ S8US Jajaned | 10} Adljod
Buluue|d ayy uiypm suonebijgo
Sl 188LU 0] JIDUNCD 8y} Jo} iaplio

Ul AJUNUILOD | {5 SYI LIM MIoMm
UOIIE}NSUOS SLLOS ayeuspun o}
payiuspl u2aq 0s|e Sey uoljoe uy

"UoIIEDO
1yBu sy w Buisrioy jo adA}
ajelndoidde auyy apiaoid o1 Japlo
ul sdnolb asey) jo spasu Buisnoy
3y} 1By} 2INSUS 0] SSHIUNWIWOD
NG YN NIOM LOJIE}NSUOD
JBYHNY BWOS SxENSpUN

0} palnuap! usag Sey Uuonioe uy

‘PepIACLd BB UOIJEPOLULIOIIE
jo sjun Jabue| jo Aiddns
JuaoIyns B By} pepusllLIossal
pue ‘saijiunwidod JINg eyl

{u1 s1um) dnoub Jayjo Auy

si8|[aAel | fsa1sdAg

SsaUILS - dnoi9) oIyiF Jei0

gely - dnois 21U)3 JSUio

Jaylo Aue —
ysiug yoejg/uesqqgiie) jJUBdUY HMIelg

ueoLpy —
ysnug xoe|g/uesqques /ueslyy Hoelg

uesqgilen -

uoljeUE|dxg

aisun

1ordul
ON

yedu
anneban

- JoedLu
SAlISOd




Page 83

‘uoisiaoid Buisnoy psiioddns pue
$15110 Jo abuel pool e yum ‘[lom
Apwanxa ylom yoym ‘s|dosd
BunoA o} a|ge|leae $32)AI8S

pue sjuswabuele jsnqoJ

10 Joquunu B Ajjuaund aue aisy|

(6z-71)
a|doad JoBunoA

‘palanlep
Apussaud a2 eyl s201AIas 0}
sabueyo awos 01 Buipes| saolales
pepun} 4g o) sebueyd swos a9
pinoo a1ay] ‘sdnaoab Joulo Jsow
0} paledwod UoIEPOUIUODIE
paJiajeys pue Buishoy jo sbues
apim B 0} s$a008 aney a|doad
Jep|o esaid Iy eininy ay)

ul Jow a4 jjim dnoub siu) jo spasu
BU1 MOY INoge SUolBpUSLLILLIODa)
ayeuw ||m pue ‘ucljiepolluiogde
so|doad Jap|o Jo malAad
anisuayasduoo B apnioul ||Im
yoim ABaiens Buisnoy s,s|dosd
Jap|o ue dojaasp o} yuswalnbal
B SBY UB[d UOI}aYy Buisnoy

pue ABareng BuisnoH syl

(+ 09) adoad Jp|O

aby

1enxasig pue Aeb ‘ue|gsa’]

uciyeuaLQ
[enxag

"SesiA9s o uoheinByucoal

1O UoIJaNpal SWOS U Jnsad

Aew ds 01 sino senemoy "sdnoib
agay) Jo} suoijdo Buisnoy s|qejns
Auep! 0} pue ssauj|| [elusiy

pueE g7 Yim 3soy] o spsall

oy} dew o] ale)) |B1d0g pue
Lo Uim A|2AilRI0qB]I0D YoM
O} SUDIDE paijljusp! ale aiayl

SaNssi L}|eal [Bluspy

salligestp BuiuiesT

uoneuejdxg

2unsun

oedu
CN

10edWi
annebap

- Joedwl
BAlISOd




‘aigejreaz suondo Buisnoy pue
sSp|oYaSnoy SSa|aLIoy 0) palayo
poddns sy} asesloul 0} Bunisas

Sl [IaUNO2 aUY} pue Spjoyashoy

SSB|aWCy Jo} a|gejieAs suoido

Busnaoy jo sbued e s1 a1ay ]

SPIOYISNOY $SSjoLLIOH

papiaoid Buisnoy

10 abuel ayi awdwossaacldu
0] §)988 UB}4 UOHOY

BuisnoH pue AbBejeng Buisnoy
9y} Ing spaau je busswl

J0U S slopuayo 1ol Buisnoy

10 uoIsiaoid Buisnoy Buisixe ay

siapusyo

‘pasu Buisnoy jo souapiAs
S| 2JoUf) 2UOYM SEDIE [BiNnt
Ul saus ajgeyns Ajjuspl o} swie
oloid sdiysisuned ysued ayl

SOIUUNLILLIOD jeimy

sdnoub yye} uoN

sdnolgy yje4

sdnoab Ja410

uolbljey
40 Jallag

‘Alddns

paaoxa sAemie |Im Buisnoy

o) puewsp ‘Ayjead ul ing ‘Buppom
diysssuped ybnouyy pue ‘papiacid
Buisnoy Jo azis pue adA) Jybu ey
Bulisaliep Ag SIU O JUNODE Saxe)
ue|d uonoy BuisnoH pue AbBsjeilg
BuisnoH sy "wIoal aiejiam
yBnoiy) pesoduul yusl Wool

a|Buis ay} Aq paoaye Ajjoellp

ale ¢¢ Japun spdosd sjbuig

‘2ININY BY} Ul S80IAI9S

JO uoleInBlyuosal Jo uoloNpal B

ur ynsal Aew Buipun) 4 o1 sinD

uoneuedxg

ainsun

oedu
ON

Joeduw
anijeban

- Joedul
BAljIsod




Page 85

cApoadipul Jo Aposaap eyl (s)dnoib >:m jsurebe ajeulwIIsIp ABajenys ay) pjnon 2

Buiagiom JIsy} s10aye pue ajl s.a/doad uo joedu [eluswepUny e sey Buisnoy

Zoiej|em ‘uoljepowituoase ‘eoueuly ajdwexs 10} ABajess siy) Aq pajoaye saal s.9|doad Jo sjuswa|d Aay aly 9

"SNSUSD SU} Ul

sauobalen sjeledas se leadde jou op jey) @|doad ueadoing ulsjses pue ysiod ‘g|dwexa Jo} ‘senofsled peoid ay} Ulylim sSiUNWLIoD

oyioads Jo spesu oy} 0} usnB 8q PINOUS UONBISPISUCD "SNSUBD || 0Z SU} Ul pasn S0U} 8Je UORDSS 80By U Ul pasn seuoBsied ay |

- o) sonsouBe Jo sjsieye se yons suoibljas pesiueblo yim palerosse Jou sdnolf Jo sienplalpul
0} 1eya1 sdnoub yyey uoN “sioeduwi saneBau pue salisod Bulepisuod uaym A[9AIRSII03 PuE Ajfenpiaipul saloBayes yye;) Japisuoy

"SNPUIH PUB ‘SYAIS ‘SUBRSUYD 'SMaP 'SISIUPPNY ‘SWISNA| @18 Y21l J0 UOLUWOD JSOW ) ‘sBuidnoub jo ebuel apim e J1anoo sdnoJb yied

‘'sdnoib s|gessuna

lie 03 ajqejieae suondo Buisnoy

Y} osEaIIU| 0] $HBS UB|d UOIDY
BuisnoH pue ABsjeng Buisnoy

2y} pue ‘uoisinosd Buisnoy
pouoddns Buipnjoul ‘@snsiw
ooueIsqns Jo ACISIY B Ylim

- a|doad Joj 10UIStp @yl uiynm aoejd
Ul $92iAles o|ji0ads ase aley |

osnsiw
22uBISqns JO ALOISIY B Ujim SSOY L

‘sp|oyasnoy ssafeLuoy
awuos 0] 1oeduwi saelbasu

B sk U9as a¢ Aew sIy) pue
‘g|gissod siaym Jojoas ajeald

BU} Ul S9IINP $S9USSIBLIOY

s)1 9BJIBUDSID O} 3888 |iIMm [I9UN0
ay| ‘uoisiacld Buisnoy pspoddns
JUSLIND 3L} UM Sisixa Ajjusiing
1ey; deb ay} aBplg plnom

[e1soy mau e Jo uoisiaoud 8y |

uoneue|dxy

ainsun

1oedull
ON

1oedul
aanebaN

— 1oedwl
aAllsod




Page 86

|

£S20p 11 Jey) os pajdepe aq 31 PINod Moy

— suoniejal pasosduwi o saiunuoddo jenba ‘Ajjenba sajowold yosfoad 1o Aarjod ‘ABajesss ay) Jey] adUSPIAD OU S| 218U} §| 6

Ppedwl aasod
]I 9SEDIOUI UBD UR|4 Uonoy Buisno pue ABsjens Butsnoy ay) jey) shem pajsebbns
Aue ypm auij Ul papusule aq jjim pue Uoleynsuod 1ayuny oy 1oslans aq [im y|b3 eyl

1oedwl aanisod s,As1j0d 10 Joafoid ‘ABajelys ayy aaoiduw) nok pinod moH (g g

‘Buisnoy jo uoisirnoid sy} 8seaoUL 0)

‘fouabe sbBume| [B100S B Jo Uoieald ayj Ybnolyy ‘uoioy ISIPoylSy Se yons 'sisuped
yum Bunpiom Ag pue ‘aining ayj ul Buisnoy jo azis pue adA} ybu sy} Bulanep

£q ‘Buisnoy Bunsixa jo asn jsaq sy} Bunjew Aq oeduwl ayj asiwuiw 0} Jdwene

[ Ing 1oedill ey} SACLWSI JOUURD UBj4 uoloy BuisnoH pue ABsjeng BuisnoH sy
‘saitadold nlayy Adnaoo-1spun oym abe sjgeuoisuad Japun sjueus) Buisnoy [eioos
pue ¢z 1apun sjdoad g)Buis se yons ‘sdnotb owios 108ye AjosiIp WI0S] BlOM

"SIy} PUNCIE 1IN0 PBLIED 8Q PINOM UOIIB)NSUOD Jsyun44 sBuines

fessanau ay) aAa1yoe 0] 1sIxe suoido jeym pue sabueys Aue Jo Jpedwi sy JopIsuod
0} paau uay} [|IM PLASIP 4oeT 'INo palued aq |(Im Juswussesse pedun Aljenba
ajeledas e ‘'ssa00.d jey) Jo Hed se pue ‘siyseaue utjueld sidoad Bupoddns

ay} Jo uonnquisip ay; Buimaiaai ale jiounon Ajuno) aanysesue | ‘sdnoub jo sequinu
B 0] 520/AJ8S JO UonelnBiuooal jo uonanpal ay) ul Jnsal Aew swweibold ajdosd
Buruoddng ayi 0] s)N0 “syoedul aAnebau ay} Jo || aAowal 0} 9jgissod aq jou Aew 3

2yoeduw aaneba

u Aue aaowad 10 asiwWiuIL noA pinoo moy ‘syoedwi aanebsu Aue ale aiayy | (e g

‘papnjoul Apealje Jou spoedul
Jayjo Aue yum Buoje asay) UO 3oBgpPaa) 0 SJUSWILIOD AUB BLUOIIDM BAA JNsSal e
se y|b3 siy} jo £ uonoas Ul pauguapl uaaq aaey sjoedw sapsod pue aAlebau swog

‘Mmoy aje}s aseald ‘sah )|




Page 87

ABayens ayl
anowal pue doyg

‘UoNEYNSUOD | Aoljod syt enunuo)
Buunp pajsebbns sjuswanoidwi 0} algng

fajjod ay; 3snlpy

abueyd Jofew oN

jueA=i=l

uonoe jo uojeue(dxy | SB OIL LU0y

‘Bunje} a4e noA uoiloe ayj sl
siyl Aym Jo uojeue|dxa ue apiacid pue Buimo||o) ayj JO aU0 }I1] ieu o)
pasu nok op Aue 1 ‘saBueyd jeym uswissasse JnoA uo paseg :sda)s 1xXaN LI

‘Aenuer ul jeuige) ol Buloh sioeq sieploysyels
0} paje[nosn-al aq [Im b3 ay; uim Buofe UoISIaA [eul} BY} ING ‘Ue|d UOIOY
BuisnoH pue ABajess BuisnoH ay} U UCHEYNSUOD SAISUSIXS Uaaq Apealje sey a1y |

N0 paldied
Suuoyuow Aienba Aue Jo spejap apn|oul aseald J1vsfloidjAsjod/ABajens ayj uc Jno palised usaq sey Uole}NSUod JeYM 01

‘Aenba sjowoud 0} pajdepe aqg
pinoa ABojeliS auy} JoU JO JaLiaym 0] SE S8} NSUOD JO SMBIA S} DLLOD[SM PINOM S




Agenda ltem 7 Page 88

CABINET

Council Housing Tenancy Policy
12" March 2013
Report of Head of Health and Housing Services

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To set out the requirement for the council as a social housing provider to approve and
publish a Tenancy Policy.

Non-Key Decision D Referral from Cabinet \:I
Member

Date of notice of forthcoming key decision 11 February 2013

This report is public.

RECOMMENDATION OF COUNCILLOR LEYTHAM

(1) That Cabinet approves the council housing Tenancy Policy (Annex A).

1 Introduction

1.1 The Localism Act requires local authorities to produce and publish a Tenancy
Strategy, to which local social housing providers must have regard. Cabinet
approved the council’s Tenancy Strategy in January 2013.

1.2 Tenancy Policies are a requirement of the Homes and Communities Agency
in its role as the social housing regulator, and must be produced by all
landlords (council departments, Arms Length Management Organisations
(ALMOs) and housing associations).

1.3 As a social housing provider the council is required to adopt and publish a
Tenancy Policy and in doing so must have regard to the Council’'s Tenancy
Strategy.

2 Proposal Details

21 Having regard to the recently approved council's Tenancy Strategy, the
council housing Tenancy Policy (Annex A) brings together existing policy and
practice in a clear and accessible way which outlines the council’s approach
to tenancy management, including interventions to sustain tenancies and
prevent unnecessary evictions, and tackling tenancy fraud.

2.2 The social housing regulator requires the following aspects to be covered in
the policy:



2.3

3.1

Page 89

¢ The type of tenancies a social housing provider will grant.

¢ Where a social housing provider grant tenancies for a fixed term, the length
of those terms.

e The circumstances in which a social housing provider will grant tenancies of
a particular type.

¢ Any exceptional circumstances in which a social housing provider will grant
fixed term tenancies for a term of less than five years in general needs
housing following any probationary period.

e The circumstances in which a social housing provider may or may not grant
another tenancy on the expiry of the fixed term, in the same property or in a
different property.

e The way in which a tenant or prospective tenant may appeal against or
complain about the length of fixed term tenancy offered and the type of
tenancy offered, and against a decision not to grant another tenancy on the
expiry of the fixed term.

¢ Their policy on taking into account the needs of those households who are
vulnerable by reason of age, disability or iliness, and households with
children, including through the provision of tenancies which provide a
reasonable degree of stability.

e The advice and assistance a social housing provider will give to tenants on
finding alternative accommodation in the event that they decide not to grant
another tenancy.

¢ Their policy on granting discretionary succession rights, taking account of
the needs of vulnerable household members.

The proposed council housing Tenancy Policy is set out in Annex A.
Details of Consultation

In setting out the council housing Tenancy Policy regard has been had to the
council’'s Tenancy Strategy as well as best practice guidance from the
chartered Institute of Housing. The District-wide Tenants’ Forum has also
been consulted during the development of the council’s Tenancy Strategy and
also on the proposed Tenancy Policy. The Tenancy Policy has also been
discussed at the District-wide Tenants’ Forum Tenancy Quality Group. There
have been no adverse comments; the Forum and the Quality Group are
supportive of the approaches being proposed.

Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

Option 1: To approve the Option 2: Approve the council
proposed council housing housing Tenancy Policy with
Tenancy Policy amendments

Advantages

The council will meet its statutory | None

obligations.

Disadvantages

None

If amendments are made, it will be
necessary to undertake further
consultation.

Risks

No additional risks identified

Implementation of the policy would be
delayed and the council could be
open to legal challenge.




Page 90

5. Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

5.1 The adoption of the Tenancy Policy will ensure that the council meets its
statutory obligations and will enable tenants and prospective tenants to
understand the council’s approach to tenancy management.

6. Conclusion

6.1 The adoption of the Policy will meet the aims and objectives set out in the
report.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

The adoption of this policy supports the council’s priority of health and wellbeing in particular
ensuring an enhanced quality of life of local residents through access to good quality
housing. and reduce homelessness

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

The implementation of the policy will have a positive impact and will help ensure that the
council is meeting its equality obligations.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The regulatory standards for social housing require a Tenancy Policy to be established.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Rental assumptions within the budget fit with the proposed policy, subject to the impact of
welfare reforms. Such reforms could result in the need for earlier review of the policy, as
provided for under section 13.

Separately, the Council needs to be very clear about the nature of any advice given to
tenants or other parties regarding rents or financial matters more generally and this will be

ensured through exercise of the policy and associated audit.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Human Resources:
No implications

Information Services:
No implications

Property:
No implications

Open Spaces:
No implications

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The S151 Officer has been consulted and her comments have been incorporated into the
report.




Page 91

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Chris Hanna

Telephone: 01524 582516
None E-mail: channa@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref: C110




LANCASTER
CITY COUNCIL

Promoting City, Coast & Countryside

www.lancaster.gov.uk

——
Coast

Lancaster City Council
Health and Housing Services
Council Housing Tenancy Policy

March 2013
Version1.0

Date Approved:

Review Date

Version1.0



Page 93

1. Introduction

1.1 The idea of a tenancy policy results from a wider package of social
housing reforms, which include the introduction of fixed term (flexible)
tenancies and affordable rent, changes to allocations and homelessness
and promotion of increased mobility for social tenants. These reforms are
being implemented through the Localism Act 2011 and changes to social
housing regulations.

2. Context

2.1 From April 2012 the Homes and Community Agency replaced the
Tenants Services Authority as the social housing regulator in England. At
this time an updated regulatory framework was introduced including a
revised set of regulatory standards. The Tenure element of the revised
tenancy standard includes a statutory requirement for all social housing
providers to publish a clear and accessible Tenancy Policy.

2.2 It should be noted that the requirement for social housing providers to
publish a tenancy policy is different to the statutory requirement, under
the Localism Act 2011, for all local authorities to develop a tenancy
strategy by January 2013.

2.3 This Tenancy Policy has been written with due regard to the Lancaster
District Tenancy Strategy 2012 to ensure consistency with the objectives
for the management of social rented homes within the Lancaster district
as a whole.

3. Aims and Objectives

3.1 The aim of this Tenancy Policy is to communicate effectively the
Council’'s approach to tenancy management, in the light of the reforms
being implemented through the Localism Act 2011 and the ‘Regulatory
Framework for Social Housing in England from April 2012.

4. Tenancy Types

4.1. Introductory Tenancies - Most new tenants to the Council, for both
general needs and sheltered accommodation, who have not immediately
beforehand held a secure tenancy or the housing association equivalent
of an assured tenancy, will be offered an introductory tenancy for a
period of one year. Before the start of the introductory tenancy, tenants
will be told which kind of tenancy (secure tenancy or flexible tenancy)
they will be granted at the end of the introductory period.

4.2. During an introductory tenancy a tenant has less security and fewer
rights. For example:

Version 1.0
Page 2



4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

4.9.

Page 94

e Their home is at higher risk of repossession if they do not keep to the
tenancy agreement

¢ They cannot buy their home

e They cannot exchange their home

e They cannot carry out improvements to their home

An introductory tenancy will automatically become a secure tenancy after
12 months unless either the trial period has been extended or the
Council has commenced possession proceedings for the recovery of the
property due to a breach of the tenancy within the 12 month period.

To end a tenancy, the Council must serve a notice of termination. This is
a notice that tells the tenant that the Council will be asking the county
court for an immediate possession order. To extend the trial period, the
Council must serve a notice telling the tenant that the trial period is to be
extended.

Introductory tenants have the right to request an internal review of a
decision to extend the trial period or of a decision to end the tenancy.

Secure Tenancies — Most Council tenants will have a secure tenancy.
Secure tenants have the right to live in their home indefinitely as long as
they continue to comply with the requirements of the tenancy agreement.

Secure tenants also have other rights above and beyond those of an
introductory tenant, such as:

e The right to buy

¢ The right to carry out improvements

¢ The right to exchange their home

e The right to take in lodgers and sub-let part of their home

The Council can only evict a secure tenant following the correct
procedure and by obtaining a court order.

Demoted Tenancies — A secure tenancy can be downgraded to a
demoted tenancy, which is similar to an introductory tenancy. With a
demoted tenancy the tenant has fewer rights and less protection from
eviction than a secure tenancy.

4.10.The court can demote a secure tenancy if a tenant (or someone who

lives with a tenant, or visits a tenant regularly) has behaved in an anti-
socially manner or caused nuisance in their area, threatened to do so, or
used the home for illegal activities such as drug dealing.

4.11.1f the Council wants to downgrade a tenancy in this way the Council has

to obtain a court order. A demoted tenancy will normally last for 12
months after which the tenant will become a secure tenant again

Version 1.0
Page 3



Page 95

providing they have not broken the terms of the tenancy agreement and
the Council has not had to ask the Court for possession of the property.

4.12.The tenant has the right to request an internal review of a decision to
demote the secure tenancy.

4.13.Flexible Tenancies — are tenancies fixed for a specific period. This is
usually for a period of at least 5 years, though in some cases it may be
for between 2 and 5 years.

4.14.The Council does not envisage introducing flexible tenancies at this point
in time. Should the Council decide to introduce flexible tenancies this
Tenancy Policy will be reviewed to include the circumstances and the
terms of the flexible tenancies being adopted.

4.15.Tenants in flexible tenancies will have similar rights to secure tenants. A
flexible tenancy can still have an introductory period.

4.16.1f the Council had flexible tenancies, at the end of the fixed period it
could decide to:

¢ Offer another fixed-term tenancy
e Offer a secure tenancy
¢ Not to renew the tenancy

4.17.1f the Council decided not to renew a flexible tenancy then it must explain
its reasons and give the tenant a chance to challenge the decision.

4 18.A flexible tenant can:

¢ Rent out rooms (although the tenant can’t sub-let the whole property)

¢ Buy the property through the Right to Buy scheme

e Swap home with another council or housing association tenant (with
the Council’s permission)

¢ Transfer the tenancy to someone else in some circumstances

4.19. Family Intervention Tenancies — In some circumstances the Council
may offer family intervention tenancies to existing tenants who have
been evicted as a result of anti-social behaviour, or could be at risk of
eviction because of it. They normally last between 6 months and a year
and include an agreement about behaviour expected and the
involvement of support services.

4.20.A family intervention tenancy can only be used if a possession order (an
order for eviction) has been made against the tenant, or a possession
order could have been made if the person had been a tenant. To create
a family intervention tenancy, notice must be served setting out why a
family intervention tenancy is being offered.

Version 1.0
Page 4



Page 96

4.21.1f the Council wants to end a family intervention tenancy it must serve a

notice of intent. The tenant has the right to request an internal review of
a decision to end the family intervention tenancy.

4.22.Joint/Sole Tenancies - Any of the tenancy types listed above can be

joint or sole tenancies. It is the Council’s policy to create joint tenancies
wherever possible. A joint tenancy is one tenancy with 2, 3 or 4 joint
tenants who each have responsibility for meeting its terms. Joint
tenancies are common for married couples or established partners, or
close family members. A breach of tenancy by one joint tenant is the
responsibility of all.

4.23.A sole tenancy is one where the tenancy is in the name of one person

who has sole responsibility for meeting its terms.

5. Tenancy Sustainment

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

There are a number of ways that the Council will help tenants maintain
their tenancy successfully. Where problems arise or tenants breach the
terms of their tenancy agreement we will intervene quickly and provide
assistance and advice as appropriate.

Whatever the nature of the problem the Council aims to identify support
needs both prior to and during tenancies and work closely with support
services to promote tenancy sustainment.

Estate Management Team — All tenants have a named Estate Manager
who is available to give advice and assistance with tenancy related
issues. All new tenants are provided with clear information about the
terms of their tenancy and the consequences of failing to keep to those
terms.

Income Management Team - All tenants have a named Income
Management Officer who is available to give advice and assistance on
all rent related matters. If a tenant goes into rent arrears they are offered
re-payment arrangements based on their income and expenditure, and
their Income Management Officer will provide basic debt advice prior to
making referrals to other agencies for support and financial assistance.

Supported Housing - Residents in sheltered housing have a needs and
risk assessment at the time they take up a tenancy. An individual support
plan is also put in place to identifying the support needed and to help
them continue living in their own home. Support plans are reviewed
annually.

6. Preventing Evictions

6.1.

The Council will ensure that all avenues to preventing eviction have been
exhausted before taking steps to commence possession proceedings,

Version 1.0
Page 5



6.2.

6.3.

Page 97

and work closely with support agencies to prevent this happening. This
includes obtaining assistance from Social Services where appropriate,
who are notified of any pending evictions to enable their involvement as
and when they see fit.

The Council will carry out home visits and make efforts to maintain
regular contact with tenants who may be at risk of eviction whether as a
result of anti-social behaviour or rent arrears. We will use early
intervention as a method to resolve problems before they become
unmanageable.

The Council will provide written advice as provided for in the Council’s
Rent Arrears Handbook regarding every stage of the rent arrears
process. We shall also provide written advice in the case of anti-social
behaviour cases in accordance with the Council’'s Tackling Anti-Social
Behaviour booklet and the Council’s Anti-Social Behaviour Policy
Statement regarding its approach to anti-social behaviour. Tenants at
risk of eviction are advised of their right to appeal against an eviction,
and how to go about doing this.

7. Tackling Tenancy Fraud

7.1.

7.2.

In order to join the Lancaster City Council Housing register and apply for
housing, applicants must provide proof of their circumstances (including
proof of ID).  Further checks are made at the point where an applicant
receives an offer of accommodation.

For current tenants we carry out a programme of tenancy audits to
identify and combat tenancy fraud, by confirming that council tenancies
are legally occupied and that the information held about tenants is
correct and up to date.

8. Succession Rights

8.1.

8.2

Following the death of a sole tenant, a spouse or civil partner can
succeed to the tenancy as long as they were living in the property at the
time of the tenant’s death. If the tenant did not have a spouse or civil
partner a family member may succeed to the tenancy, providing they
have been living at the property for at least 12 months before the
tenant’s death.

For a family member to succeed they must be a close relative. This is
defined as a:

e parent/grandparent ¢ nephew/niece
¢ child/grandchild e common law husband/wife
e brother/sister o step-relative
e uncle/aunt
Version 1.0

Page 6



8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

Page 98

If more than one family member claims succession rights the family must
decide who succeeds. If the family cannot decide the Council will make
the decision based on the available relevant evidence in accordance with
relevant legalisation.

If a family member succeeds to a property which is bigger than they
need we may offer them an alternative property. Where a partner has
succeeded to the tenancy they will be able to stay in the property.

A tenancy cannot be succeeded to if the tenant:

¢ Had succeeded to the tenancy themselves (post 1981)

¢ Had the tenancy assigned to them

e Lived alone

¢ Was a joint tenant (the remaining tenant having taken over the tenancy)
¢ Was a sole tenant after a joint tenant had died

If a sole tenant dies and no-one has a legal right to succeed to the
tenancy, the Council will consider sympathetically an application for the
tenancy from a member of the household who had a long term
commitment to the home prior to the tenant’s death. The Council may
offer them alternative accommodation where the property is bigger than
they need.

9. Assignments

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

10.

10.1.

When an assignment of tenancy takes place, a tenant gives their interest
in a tenancy to another person. The tenancy itself continues on the same
basis and the new tenant takes on all the rights and responsibilities of
the tenancy.

Introductory and Secure tenancies can be assigned either to someone
who could have succeeded to the tenancy if that tenant had died (see 8
Succession Rights), or by a court order in accordance with Section 91 of
the Housing Act 1985.

Secure tenants also have the right to exchange with a tenant from the
Council, or from another Register Provider of Social Housing (see 10
Mutual Exchanges). Introductory tenants do not have the right to
exchange, but may request permission to do so.

Mutual Exchange

Tenants of Lancaster City Council can apply to exchange their home
with a tenant from the Council, or from another Registered Provider of

Version 1.0
Page 7



10.2.

10.3.

11.

11.1.

11.2.

12.

12.1.

Page 99

Social Housing. The Council will not normally refuse permission
unless:

e One of the homes would be overcrowded or (substantially) under
occupied

e The Council are taking legal action to take possession of the home
of any of the tenants involved

e The exchange would mean that a home designated for special
needs, or with design features for the physically disabled would not
be occupied by someone requiring those facilities

Before an exchange can proceed there may be conditions to be
fulfilled. For example:

e No rent arrears

e Property and garden must be in good condition

e Any improvements or alterations made without written agreement of
the council must be put right

The Council provide an internet based mutual exchange service which
enables tenants to register their details for a mutual exchange and
search for matching properties. This is a nationwide system and so
allows tenants to access matching properties in other areas of the
country. It is available via the choice based lettings website at
www.idealchoicehomes.co.uk.

Rent

The Council currently charges social rent on all tenancies. The level of
this is not dependent on local rents in the private sector and is set by
the Council each year. Social rent is generally lower than the market
rent a private landlord may charge.

The rent arrears policy is to ensure rent is collected on time, and that
when a tenant falls into rent arrears they are given appropriate
assistance to clear rent arrears at an early stage (see 5.4, above).

Anti-Social Behaviour

The Council has a comprehensive approach to tackling anti-social
behaviour, which involves working together with other agencies,
voluntary groups and residents, and includes:

. Prevention
o Early intervention
° Rehabilitation

Version 1.0
Page 8



12.2.

12.3.

12.4.

13.

13.1.

Page 100

In response to anti-social behaviour the Council will acknowledge and
grade reports quickly, and then investigate thoroughly and
professionally. Responses will, as necessary, move from advice,
conciliation, mediation and support to legal action by Lancaster City
Council on behalf of victims of anti-social behaviour as appropriate.

Complaints will not be pre-judged. The Council will impartially
investigate complaints received and shall respond by taking whatever
reasonable and proportionate action (if any) it considers appropriate in
the circumstances.

Detailed guidance on the way the Council responds to anti-social

behaviour can be found in the council housing Anti Social Behaviour
Policy Statement.

Review

This Tenancy Policy will be reviewed every three years unless
circumstances require an earlier review.

Version 1.0
Page 9



Page 101

Contact Information

Health and Housing Services
Council Housing

Postal address:
PO Box 4, Town Hall, LANCASTER, LA1 1QR

Office:
38 Cable Street, LANCASTER, LA1 1HH

Telephone:
01524 582929

Email:
councilhousing@lancaster.gov.uk

Web site:
www.lancaster.gov.uk

Our office hours are 9.00 am to 5.00 pm weekdays
(10.00 am to 5.00 pm Wednesdays)

When the office is closed, if there is an emergency,
ring the Council’s Emergency Call Centre,
which is open 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.
The number to call is: 01524 67099

Calls may be recorded to help improve
our standard of service and accuracy of information

LANCASTER

CITY COUNCIL

Promoting City, Coast & Countryside




Agenda ltem 8 Page 102
Cabinet

Salt Ayre Sports Centre
12" March 2013

Report of Head of Community Engagement and
Assistant Head (Wellbeing)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To update members on the ongoing operational review of Salt Ayre Sports Centre.

Non Key Decision - Referral from Officer ‘:I
Date of notice of forthcomlng
key decision

This report is public

Recommendation of Councillor Ron Sands

(1) That Cabinet approves the proposed changes to opening times for Salt
Ayre Sports Centre in 2013/14, with the effective date being delegated
to the Head of Service, taking account of operational needs".

1 Introduction

The Council is required to make ongoing savings as part of the Medium Term
Financial Strategy and the ongoing review of various aspects of the sports
centre’s operations has identified some initial cost reductions that can be
implemented now.

2 Report

2.1 In order to address the need to achieve savings for future years the operation
of the centre and the associated staffing structure at Salt Ayre Sports Centre
has been reviewed. As a result, it has been identified that savings can be
made.

2.2  The sports centre is currently being reviewed on a much wider scale and it is
envisaged that further efficiencies will be generated in future years. However,
a review of the current operation is something that can be put forward within a
timescale that would enable the financial benefit to take effect from April 2013.

2.3 The savings can be implemented by making alterations to shift patterns and
reducing operating hours. Discussions with swimming clubs to alter some of
their start times have begun and it is clear that progress can be made. This
will result in earlier closing of the building and therefore enable a new shift
pattern to be implemented.

2.4  The sports centre currently opens to the public for 106.75 hours per week,
This includes a mix of use including general public swimming, swimming
lessons, club use, exercise classes and galas. (Note: this list is not
exhaustive.)



Page 103

2.5 The proposal is to reduce opening times by seven hours to 99.75 hours per
week.
Current Proposed
Mon 06:45 - 23:00 | 16.25|06:45 - 22:00| 15.25
Tue 06:45 - 23:00 | 16.25|06:45 - 22:30| 15.75
Wed 06:45 - 23:00 | 16.25|06:45 - 22:00| 15.25
Thu 06:45 - 23:00 | 16.25|06:45 - 22:00| 15.25
Fri 06:45 - 23:00 | 16.25|06:45 - 22:30| 15.75
Sat 07:45-20:30|12.75|07:45-19:00, 11.25
Sun 07:45-20:30 | 12.75|07:45-19:00 11.25
106.7 99.75
5
2.6 The proposed changes have an effect on the swimming clubs that use the
pool and, following consultation, it is proposed to bring forward their closing
times where possible enabling some earlier finishes for younger participants.
Changes that effect clubs are set out in the table below.
Current Proposed
Lancaster
Tuesday -|07.00 - 08.00 [19.30 - 22.30| 4.00 |07.00 - 08.00|19.00 - 22.00| 4.00
Thursday |07.00 - 08.00 21.30 - 22.30| 2.00 |07.00 - 08.00|20.30-21.30| 2.00
Friday - 19.00 - 22.30| 3.50 18.30-22.00| 3.50
Sunday - |08.00 - 09.30 [16.00 - 19.30| 5.00 |08.00-09.30|15.00-18.30| 5.00
14.50 14.50
Otters
Monday [No Change [19.00 - 21.30| 2.50 19.00 - 21.30| 2.50
Wed No Change |19.00 - 21.30| 2.50 19.00 - 21.30| 2.50
Saf 17.00 - 19.00| 2.00 16.30 - 18.30| 2.00
7.00 7.00
2.7  The revised opening times, shift patterns and changes to programming enable

changes to be made to the staffing structure which will deliver savings and

enable the sports centre to continue to operate safely and efficiently.

3.0 Details of Consultation

There has been consultation with those principally affected by these

proposals i.e. local swimming clubs.




Page 104

4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

Option 1: Maintain existing | Option 2: Change programme as
programme and opening | set out within report

times
Advantages S\.Nlmm'ln'g cl'ubs continue Co.u.ncn. realises savings and
with existing times of use. efficiencies.

Swimming clubs are provided with
times that better suit their needs.

Opportunity to provide a | Reduction in overall opening times
programme that better suits | to the sports centre.
clubs is lost.

Disadvantages

Minimal reduced public access to
Potential savings to the | fitness suite and swimming pool
council are not realised.

Council is seen not to be | Memberships to fitness suite are

Risks working towards | lost as a result of reduced opening
implementing a change | times.
programme that produces
efficiencies.

5 Conclusion

Positive discussions with swimming clubs has allowed for changes to the
programme to be implemented and as such associated changes to shift rotas.
This has resulted in savings being identified for future years through a
reduction in staffing numbers.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

The operation of Salt Ayre sports centre supports a number of Council priorities relating to
the Health and Wellbeing agenda. These operational changes do not impact on that support.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT

(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

None arising from this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no legal implications arising as a result of this report

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The savings set out in the table below are based on a phased implementation during the
2013/14 financial year and assume that salary savings will be with effect from 1% June 2013.
At present staffing related savings only have been quantified; redundancy costs, which could
be in the region of £30,000 for enhanced redundancy are noted; these would be financed
from the Restructuring Reserve. It is expected that the other savings will be achieved from
reductions in overtime payments due to the changes in the opening hours along with some
small operational savings such as utilities. These have not yet been quantified/costed, but it
is considered that they will (at least) meet the budgeted savings required. Although it would
be preferable to have full costings available, it is considered that any decision on changing
the opening hours should not be delayed. Furthermore, it is clear that the indicative up-front
costs would be paid back within a short period of 4.5 months, taking into account only the
staff savings.




Page 105

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Budgeted Saving £75,000 £92,000 £94,000
Identified salary savings (£67,600) (£85,000) (£87,500)
Balance - other savings to (£7,400) (£7,000) (£6,500)
be identified / quantified

Redundancy Costs (Max) £34,200 £0 £0

Regular monitoring of all savings will be maintained and reported corporately at future
meetings.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Human Resources / Information Services / Property / Open Spaces:

Human Resource officers are advising on staffing issues.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The s151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Simon Kirby : Assistant
head Community Engagement - Wellbeing
Telephone: 01524 582831
E-mail:skirby@lancaster.gov.uk

none




Agenda ltem 9 Page 106

CABINET

Development of the “Light Up Lancaster” Festival
12 March 2013

Report of the Head of Community Engagement

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek a decision regarding an application for Arts Council funding

Non-Key Decision |:I Referral from Officer I:I
Date of notice of forthcoming key decision 11 February 2013

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLOR SANDS

(1) That Cabinet support the submission of a bid to the Arts Council by the
Lancaster Arts Partners.

(2) That Cabinet notes the commitment required to deliver this initiative
over the next two financial years.

(3) That the Council agree to become the Accountable Body for the funding
should the bid be successful.

(4) That the Head of Resources be given delegated authority to update the
General Fund Revenue Budget should the bid be successful and subject
to there being no additional call on City Council resources.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 For the past 18 months the City Council, County Council and Lancaster Arts
Partners (LAP) have been working together to develop the Fireworks
Spectacular in November into an event that will gradually but ultimately grow
in to one of national significance and benefit the local economy.

1.2 The city council last year supported the LAP bid for £30k of county arts
funding to introduce Light Up Lancaster, a series of arts activities in a range
of outdoor spaces across the city centre put on by LAP members and run the
night before the Fireworks Spectacular. The county bid stated at that time
that, based on the evaluation of Light Up Lancaster in November 2012, an
application to the Arts Council ‘Grants for the Arts’ funding, totalling £90k over
two years might be made £45k for each year.

1.3 The 2012 event, which was ambitious, was a success, with estimated visitor
numbers of 2,000, despite the marketing being deliberately low key for this



Page 107

first year. LAP have good evidence of people staying over the weekend in
order to take advantage of weekend activities, with the clear benefits for the
local economy. It showcased Lancaster in a new light, drew new audiences,
demonstrated the value of partners working together, was a quality product,
encouraged pride in the city and received positive publicity.

1.4 The project aligns closely to a number of council priorities and goals including:

* More tourists coming to the district and tourist income is maximised

« The attractiveness of the district as a place to visit is improved

« The district’s cultural, retail and tourism offer is maximised

» Lancaster district’s recognition as a visitor destination is enhanced

» Visitor spend increased

» Visitor numbers increased

» Visitor enquiries increased

» Number of heritage assets improved

« Increase in the number of people participating in arts, culture and
entertainment events in the district

* Increased participation in local entertainment and community events

«  Work with partners to develop and deliver events and festivals throughout the
district

» Support arts in the district working with the Arts Partnership Identified as a
strategically important partnership by the Council)

» Pride in our Place

1. 51t also supports the Lancaster Square Routes scheme, chimes well with the
opportunities the castle development will provide as well as Marketing
Lancashire’s aims to promote Lancaster as a cultural heritage city. It also fits well
with the emerging Arts Strategy for the district and reflects the Arts Council’s
encouragement of bids of this nature.

1.6 All partners believe Light Up Lancaster has the potential to become a flagship
festival for the county and one acknowledged at national level and therefore wish
to develop the festival further over the next few years.

2.0 Report

2.1 Whilst the event was held in November it did not prove possible to bring partners
together to carry out a detailed evaluation of the event and whether it should
continue in its existing or enhanced form. Partners now wish to press ahead with
the Grants to the Arts bid. The aim is to create a festival to draw new staying
visitors to the city in November and raise the reputation of the city as a
destination of cultural and heritage significance.

2.2 Due to the very tight timescales and resource, a small amount of City council arts
development funding is currently being utilised to fund a LAP consultant to
develop the bid. The intention is for this bid to be in Lancaster City Council’s
name, with the city council as accountable body who, in turn, will outsource the
development and delivery of the majority of work to arts partners.

2.3 Match funding would be set against this and would include a number of sources
including the county council funding (which has another year to run - £7,500 in
2013), the range of Saturday daytime activities provided by a wide variety of
partners including Lancaster University, museums, libraries and Castle and arts



Page 108

partners themselves. It is likely the event will also be linked to a canals project
which will also be presented as match funding, together with city council match
for tourism marketing and information via the VICs and the fireworks themselves.

2.4 Longer term the ambition would be to examine opportunities for the festival to
expand to other parts of the district.

3.0 Details of Consultation

3.1 There has been consultation with arts partners, county council and Marketing

Lancashire.
considered.

Evaluation of the 2012 event from event goers has also been

4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

4.1 Support the bid or not support the bid.

Option

Benefits

Risks

Support the bid

The project aligns closely to a
number of council priorities and
goals outlined in section 1.4 and

it also:

Supports Lancaster
Square Routes scheme
chimes well with the
opportunities the castle
development will provide
fits with Marketing
Lancashire’s aims to
promote Lancaster as a
cultural heritage city

fits well with the
emerging Arts Strategy
for the district

Reflects the Arts
Council’'s encouragement
of bids of this nature.

Is a strong partnership
project

* It requires match
funding, along with
a commitment
from the city
council in acting
as accountable
body for the next
two financial
years,

* Financial
pressures may
mean the city
council cannot
sustain the
existing level of
match in 2014/15
as it will in
2013/14. However,
many elements of
match are from
non-council
sources and other
funding
opportunities could
be sought

Not support

The advantages above
are not realised.

Retains greater budget
flexibility for making
savings.

The advantages are not
realised.




Page 109

5.0 Conclusion

5.1 The development of the Light up Lancaster festival supports a number of
Council priorities in particular the growth of the visitor economy and a bid to
the Arts Council is being encouraged by that body.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

The proposal supports a number of Corporate Plan priorities as set out in the report.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety,
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing)

None directly arising from this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no legal implications arising from this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The £90k bid to the Arts Council requires a certain amount of match funding, both financial
and in kind, although to date an exact amount is not specified.

For 2013/14 contributions from British Waterways and Lancashire County Council have been
confirmed totalling £29.15k and existing city council budgets include amounts totalling £26k
for the fireworks delivery and marketing costs. A further £11.5k has been identified but is
subject to further discussions and is not yet confirmed. In addition to this the city council
would also be able to contribute a certain amount of match funding for officer time spent on
organising the event and also in undertaking the administration required in acting as
accountable body. Detailed costings have not been calculated at this stage but any
requirements for officer time will be managed from within existing resources.

In terms of 2014/15, aside from the £26k LCC budget for fireworks delivery and marketing
costs, no other funding sources have been confirmed at the time of writing this report.
However, it is anticipated that this will have been resolved by the time the bid is submitted.
In any case Arts Council have indicated that funding for both years will need to be confirmed
before any funds are released.

If the funding bid is successful city council revenue budgets would need to be updated to
include the additional £90k grant.

Working with LAP, city council officers would be responsible for deciding how the grant is
allocated in line with financial regulations and procurement rules.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Human Resources: None
Information Services: None

Property: Proposals may emerge to light up buildings that are in the ownership of the
Council




Page 110

Open Spaces: None

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The s151 Officer has been consulted and other than highlighting that the financial aspects of
any bid would require agreement with Financial Services, she has no further comments.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comment

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Gill Haigh
Telephone: 01524 582178
E-mail: ghaigh@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref:

None




Page 111 Agenda ltem 10

CABINET

Commissioning Arrangements
Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector
12 March 2013

Report of Head of Community Engagement

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report is to make final recommendations on the services to be commissioned from the
voluntary, community and faith sector (VCFS) for 2013 to 2016

Key Decision Non- Key Decision Referral from Cabinet
Member

Date of notice of forthcomln key decision 19 February 2013
This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL and the PORTFOLIO
HOLDER FOR VOLUNTARY SECTOR

(1) Cabinet notes the commissioning process undertaken for services identified
in the council’s Delivery and Commissioning Plan

(2) Member Panel recommendations for services to be supported are approved
and service and financial arrangements agreed with delivery partners,
subject to normal contractual requirements and the overall budget approved
by council

(3) The General Fund Revenue budget is updated to reflect the
recommendations in this report

1.0 Introduction

1.1 At its meeting on the 4th December 2012 Cabinet approved the publication of
the Delivery and Commissioning Plan to commission services from the VCFS.
(Minute 84 refers)

1.2 It was also agreed that the portfolio holder and Leader meet with relevant
officers to agree the allocations of funding for each of the services to be
commissioned subject to final confirmation as part of the budget process.

1.3 Recommendations for commissioned services are now provided for approval
by Cabinet and to be incorporated into the 2013 -2014 budgets, within the
previously agreed overall budgets.



2.0
2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.0
3.1

3.2

4.0
4.1

Page 112

Proposal Details

A general invitation to tender to provide services outlined in the Delivery and
Commissioning Plan was advertised via local networks and on the
procurement CHEST on the 21st December.

Three categories of service were outlined in the plan:

e Infrastructure — Up to £25,000
e Volunteering Coordination — Up to £15,500
e Advice and Information Services — Up to £200,000
Organisations could tender for any amount up to and including the total

amount available for that category although the value of contracts awarded
will need to be within the overall limit of £245,000.

In addition, a sum of £12,500 is reserved for small grants to be available via a
grants scheme during 2013 — 14.
Organisations were made aware that tenders would be assessed based on
the criteria agreed by Cabinet:
Need
Links to corporate priorities and other approved strategies
Value for Money
Quality Assurance (delivery to budget, timescale & expected standards)
Sustainability (Efficiencies evidenced & forward plan/exit strategy in place)
Collaboration (with other VCFS organisations, including joint tenders)
The deadline for tenders was the 4 February and twenty-five were received,
18 for Advice and Information (value £887,655), six for VCFS infrastructure

(value £135,500) and one for volunteering (value £15,500). The total value of
all tenders was of £1,038,655.

Tenders were assessed by an officer panel to ensure proposals met the
requirements of the Commissioning and Delivery Plan, were deliverable and
met agreed quality criteria (ref Para 2.4). Assessments were independently
moderated to ensure consistency.

Services Recommended

The Member panel met on the 19th February to review the tenders and to
agree the recommendations to be made to Cabinet. 8 tenders were selected
that collectively meet the broad outcomes detailed in the council’s
Commissioning and Delivery Plan and also best meet assessment criteria.
The budget available of £245,000, including the £12,500 reserved for small
grants, is not sufficient to meet the requested level of funding from all service
providers selected and detailed negotiations will now be undertaken to ensure
that services that will deliver the planned outcomes effectively and achieve
value for money

Tenders recommended for support, nature of services offered and
recommended budgets are listed at Appendix A.

Details of Consultation

Specific engagement work was undertaken with VCFS partners to inform the
development of the council’'s Commissioning and Engagement Plan. The
council continues to engage with VCFS partners to monitor ongoing and
emerging opportunities and issues and opportunities for the sector and the
services delivered via the current Service Level Agreements and as part of a
range of current partnership working arrangements.



Page 113

5.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)
Option 1: Agree the Option 2: Allocate none or only
recommendations as proposed | some of the funding
Advantages Benefits achieved for individuals | Some or all funding available for

and families in the district as a
result of council support for key
services.

The resilience and capacity of
the VCF sector is improved by
support, development and
increased collaboration.

Contracted services will be able
to start or continue uninterrupted
from 1 April 2013.

alternative priorities.

Possible reduction in staff
resources required for contract
management.

Disadvantages

Current budget for VCFS
services will be fully committed.

Some staff resources required
for contract management.

Critical services to individuals
and families in the district will be
lost or at risk.

Potential negative impact on
viability and resilience of the
VCF sector, created by loss of
support and development
services.

Reduction in volunteering
capacity and opportunities in the
district.

Risks

Contractual arrangements need
to be in place by 1 April. Work
to confirm service details and
contract terms being developed
to meet this requirement.

Potential negative impact on
individuals and families, created
by loss or reduction in VCF
services including advice and
information.

Potential increase in demand for
mainstream services, created by
early and ongoing interventions
normally provided by VCFS.

6.0
6.1

Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

The preferred option is Option 1. This reflects the council’s priorities including

the intention to support the most vulnerable in our society. Objectives and
outcomes were informed by detailed assessment of needs and opportunities
in the district and engagement with a wide range of service delivery partners.
The commissioning process has been fair and transparent, providing
opportunities for service deliverers to propose effective ways of achieving the
required outcomes. Achieving Value for Money has been a key element in
developing new service arrangements.




Page 114

7.0 Conclusion

7.1 The engagement of service delivery partners in the commissioning process
has been invaluable and has informed the development of the council’s
approach to VCFS support. An open, fair and transparent commissioning
process has resulted in recommendations to Cabinet that broadly meet all of
the requirements of the council’s Commissioning and Delivery Plan, providing
optimum service delivery arrangements to deliver maximum possible benefits
for local people and organisations.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

The recommendations are consistent with the council’s Priorities and Outcomes, as
identified in the Corporate Plan 2012 — 2015, specifically Community Leadership - “The
voluntary, community and faith sector (VCFS) has capacity to deliver services for the
district”. Recommendations also support the council’s intention “to protect the most
vulnerable in our society”.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety,
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing)

Services recommended for support are district wide and as part of contractual
arrangements, services will be expected to meet all accessibility requirements. Sustainability
is identified as one of the criteria for assessment of tenders in the council’'s Commissioning
and Delivery Plan

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The council will need to enter into appropriate contractual arrangements with service
providers, which will include details of contracted services as well as financial and
performance related information. Existing Service Level Agreements, including any rent
contributions, with current VCFS service providers will now lapse with any final payments to
be made before the 31 March 2013.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The gross expenditure budget for VCFS services in 2013/14 is £245K which is in line with
the total proposed allocations. However, it should also be noted that £1K income has been
assumed in respect of a 50% contribution from the County Council towards any small grants
paid to old peoples clubs. These were previously paid from the welfare grants budget.
Therefore, in order to ensure the net budget is not exceeded, the new small grants budget
will initially need to be capped at £11.5K and only increased if specific grant allocations are
eligible for the 50% contribution.

As already mentioned, all rent contributions will end on 31 March. However, any future grant
recipients who are tenants in council buildings will still have their rent deducted from their
proposed grant allocation (as shown in Appendix 1) before payment is made.

Finally, at the time of producing this report, the 2013/14 budget allocations were still subject
to final agreement by Budget Council on 27 February 2013.




Page 115

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Human Resources:

Some staff resources are required to provide ongoing management of contracts with VCFS
service providers

Information Services:
No direct implications
Property:

Rent contributions to VCFS organisations will end on the 31 March and, in line with its
current policy, the council will still need to achieve the relevant rental values for council
property.

Open Spaces:
No direct implications

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Anne Marie Harrison
Telephone: 01524 582308

None . .
E-mail: amharrison@lancaster.gov.uk




Page 116

000°S¥2

IVLOL TTVHIAO

|ej03-qns sjuelio [jews

OISF] SLINVAO TIVINS

SAD PuISIq J8)sedueT] mRllEEIR g R(e)

NOILVINYO4NI

ANV 30IAav

005°Cl e/ _ gu C €10z Ul 183e| pajiejop aq o} buipuny siy} buieooje jo Ssad0id
TS =1°'-"s Buioaminion
uofen|eAa
pue Buuojuow ‘uonewloyul jo Juswabeuew :splepuels Ajjenb
005Gl usali usal9 usal9 ‘UoIjeUIPIO-09 Ja3JUN|OA ‘Bululel) |9AS] AJjud {JUBL}INIOAI J9JUN|OA
S9PN|OU| "JOLISIP JB)SEIUEBT BU} Ul SBJIAISS UOIBUIPIO-0D JO3IUN|OA
10 Juawainooud aliysesue auQ Buimojjo} pajaoIAuL Japua) o|bulg
000°261 [e}0}-qNns uoljew.oju] pue adlApY
‘ Noam e sAep uanas ‘Aep e sinoy Jnoy Ajuamy
000¢ usaI9 ueeIo ueelo 9|qISS8298. ‘SISO Ul 9SOU} JO} UOIJeWIOjUl PUE SDIAPE sijeloads SUElIBWES
shanins
. ABisaus sawoy ybnouy) asiape Buines ABlaua pue ‘spuie) (Buiyoums)
000 ¥ usaI9 uealo uealo ‘s||Ig |@n} Uo suoleIBaPISU0D YBnoiy) sanssi yjjeay pajeloosse SEER
pue Auanod |any Bulyoe) punole 821AI8S UOIBWIONI PUB 9DIAPY
|eapJo 418y} wouy Buiynsal sanss| [B100S
000°‘s usali9 usal9 usal9) pue |euosiad yym [esp way) djay o} ‘(pajoaye spusaliy/Ajiwe) pue) poddng winoIp
SSOSSAUJIM ‘DUWILID JO SWIIOIA 0} UOIJBWIOJUI PUB BDIAPE sijeloads
. 9Je2 AJlunwwo9 /SAIAISS U}|EaY O} SS920B pue S)ijouaq ‘swiojal
0002 usaI9 ueeIo ueeIo aJeyjom Buipnjoul sease uo ajdoad Jap|o Jo} SIAPE PUB UOHEWLIOjU| aulyseoue N eby
: ‘ ‘ ]
000'¥L uealo ueais ueais sanss| ] §97 pue yjeay Lm.:mo Ayjiqesip uo (e
@oIApe apiroid o} suonesiueblio g wouy piq julor |\ Juspuadepul| Juspuadapu|) 8210 SUQ
a1ed Ajunwwod pue yjeay ‘yuswholdws ‘Buisnoy
000'G91 usalig usal9 usal9 }q9p ‘S}PaIO XE} PUB S)IBUS(] ‘SWIO0aI diejdam Bulpnioul seale gvD soue yuoN
uo (Bunsodubis Buipnjoul) 821AI8S UOIJEWIOJUI PUB SJIAPE |BIBUSS)
00002 |ejo3-gqns ainjonJjselju]
syiomaane]
ybnouy} Jusws|d Joddns asidisjus [EID0S SBPN[OU| “SBIIAISS
p 0} Aj1oedeDd pue 80UBl|ISaI ‘SSBUBAIDBYS JIaU}
000°'02 usali usal9 usal9 sa0uUByUS Yolym ‘abueyoxs abpajmous pue Bupomiau buiuoddns

(3) @3y¥3440 LNNOWY | (9VA) ALITVNO DVH) ALITIGVHIAITI

(owy) ALIGIDIN3

pue Buneniu| ‘Buiuueld oibajens pue Buipuny ‘Buioueul ‘Buiunodoe
‘sajoljod ‘@oueusanob Buipnjoul Buluiesy dnolb se |jom se siseq auo
-0}-8U0 e U0 suoyesiuebio $49/\ 0} 821AIes Joddns ainjoinisesu|

JOINY3S

SRS EIARL SR NN LONY LSV NI

NOILVSINVOYO

| xipuaddy

ONINOISSININOD S40A



Page 117 Agenda ltem 11

CABINET

Storey Creative Industries Centre: Progress Update
12 March 2013

Report of the Head of Resources

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide Cabinet with an update on the position regarding the Storey Creative Industries
Centre (CIC).

WI:I Non- Key Decision |:I Referral from Officer -
Date Included in Forthcoming Key Decision Notice N/A

This report is public.

RECOMMENDATION

That Cabinet notes the report.

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 At its meeting in October Cabinet requested a regular update on the position
regarding the Storey. This report briefly outlines progress and matters arising
between the January Cabinet meeting up to 26 February; any later events will
be reported at the meeting.

2 GENERAL PROGRESS

2.1 Much work has been done on developing the draft business plan for the
Storey’s future. Officers have visited similar centres, including the Woodend
Creative Centre at Scarborough to learn from that operation, as well as
consulting with a variety of stakeholders. During April the business plan will
be finalised in consultation with the Portfolio Holder, for reporting to the next
available Cabinet meeting on 28 May.

2.2 The investment needed to improve the condition of the Storey building was
included in the corporate property report to January Cabinet. As reported
back then, in broad terms the works required are estimated at a maximum
£500K of which £44K is essential works, but this does not allow for bringing
the top floor back into use, nor does provide for refurbishing the former
caretaker cottage and bringing that back into use. Similarly, the figure does
not allow for any re-modelling of existing rooms or space within the Storey to
make them more flexible, but this is likely to feature strongly in the draft
business plan.



2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.1

Page 118

The draft working budget assumptions are attached at Appendix A. The aim
of the business plan will be for the operation to at least break even, but there
is @ good way to go before this could be achieved. Repair and maintenance
is currently expected to be the highest cost, but there is scope to reduce
some assumptions such as building cleaning costs. Rental income received
against the budget assumptions remains on track, but clearly there is a need
to improve rental streams significantly. The forecast budget will be updated
and reported in support of the proposed business plan.

In terms of occupancy, there have been a number of expressions of interest
from potential new tenants and these are being actively pursued.  Any
tenants still on licences (rather than having a lease) will be given the
opportunity to extend up until the end of June. This gives time for Cabinet to
consider the business plan, and for appropriate market testing or procurement
to commence.

The Facing North exhibition in the Gallery is due to finish on 09 March and
has been well received; further details may be fed into the Cabinet meeting.
A Northern View, featuring paintings by Mark Nelson, runs from 6 - 27 April.
Other artists work continues to be shown in the Thomas Storey Room on the
ground floor.

Regarding the Storey Gallery company its formal licence to occupy ends on
28 February. It has been agreed, however, that to complete an orderly
transfer of the company’s archives to Lancashire Records Office, the
company can continue to have access to the building for a short time (likely to
be a fortnight or so, but not beyond the end of March). The company has
also requested a storage facility and suitable alternatives will be offered. In
terms of the future, the company expects to know of its funding prospects
around the end of May.

Finally, some urgent tree works have been undertaken in the garden, and a
group of volunteers will soon start work under the direction of the City
Council's grounds maintenance service. A structural survey of the wall
between the two main gardens areas is being undertaken, however, and the
outcome will determine what and how work can be undertaken to improve the
gardens. Nonetheless, it is a good way to involve the community. Future use
and development of the gardens will also feature strongly in the proposed
business plan.

CONCLUSION

Realistically, May Cabinet is the earliest that the proposed business plan can
be presented for Cabinet’s consideration and it is not intended on reporting
again prior to then, unless circumstances warrant it. In the meantime, work
will continue with the aim of bringing the Storey and its grounds into better
condition and use.



Page 119

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK
The Storey operation will need to support Council’s priorities and be sustainable, to fit with
the Council’s theme of managing the Council’s resources to deliver value for money.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
Not applicable at this stage — this report is for information only.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
None arising directly as a result of this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
As referred to in the report. The draft operating budget will continue to be updated and
reported through to Members.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Human Resources / Information Services / Property / Open Spaces:

As reflected in the report. As reported previously, one of the biggest concerns to appreciate
is the amount of Officer time being spent on the Storey and that this has an adverse impact
on other workloads.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS
The s151 Officer has produced this report, in her capacity as Head of Resources.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments to add.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Nadine Muschamp

None. Telephone: 01524 (58)2140
E-mail: nmuschamp@lancaster.gov.uk@
Ref:




Page 120

The Storey Working Budget Assumptions -
Cabinet 12 March 2013

2012/13 2013/14
Revised Resources Estimate
£ £
3,100 Salaries - Basic 7,600
1,000 Salaries - Overtime 500
900 Salaries - Superannuation 1,500
0 Employee Related Insurances 100
33,100 R & M - Buildings 54,200
1,500 Grounds Maintenance 10,500
10,000 Electricity 21,700
15,000 Gas 33,700
9,400 Rates 18,900
4,200 Water Services 8,600
900 Alarm Systems 0
500 Cleaning Materials 1,000
500 Window Cleaning 1,000
900 Other Cleaning 0
10,000 Building Cleaning Recharge 22,600
9,200 Premises Related Insurance 9,200
600 Office Equipment 500
0 Printing & Stationery 500
600 Services - General 800
900 Services - Trade Refuse 1,800
2,700 Telephones 3,500
5,000 Infrastructure - Update & Maintenance 3,200
100 Exhibitions & Events 0
2,000 Miscellaneous Advertising 2,100
600 Miscellaneous Licences 0
112,700 Total Expenditure 203,500
-20,900 Rents - General -53,400
-4,000 Hire Of Premises -12,200
-25,600 Service Charges Recovered -51,600
-2,000 Telephony Recharges -2,000
-52,500 Total Income -119,200



	Agenda
	6 Housing Action Plan 2012 - 2017
	housing action plan

	7 Council Housing Tenancy Policy
	C110_Annex A_Version 1 Final Version.doc

	8 Salt Ayre Sports Centre
	9 Development of the ﬁLight Up Lancasterﬂ Festival
	10 Commissioning Arrangements - Voluntary, Community and Faith sector
	VCFS Commissioning - Appendix A for March 2013 Cabinet-v2.0.xls

	11 Storey Creative Industries Centre: Progress Update
	App A Storey Institute Budget Cabinet 120313


